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RAUL HERNANDEZ & COMPANY, P.C.
Certified Public Accountants
5422 Holly Rd
Corpus Christi, Texas 78411
Office (361) 980-0428 Fax (361) 980-1002

To the City CGouncl

City of Rio Grande City, Texas
101 S. WASHINGTON

Rio Grande City, Texas 78582

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental aclivilies, the business-lype
activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Rio Grande Cily, Texas
("the City of Rio Grande City") as of and for the year ended September 30, 2014, and the related notes to the
financial statements, which collectively comprise the City of Rio Grande City's basic financial statements as
listed in the table of contents.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the
design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors' Responsibility

Qur responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our
audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Governmen! Auditing Standards, issued by the
Comptrolier General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of
the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. in making those
risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the City of Rio Grande City's preparation
and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the City of Rio Grande
City's internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made
by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have cobtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinions.

Opinions

In our opinicn, the financial statemenis referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective
financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, and the
aggregate remaining fund information of City of Rio Grande Cily, Texas as of September 30, 2014, and the
respective changes in financial position, and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then ended in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.




Other Matters
Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the Management's
Discussion and Analysis, budgetary comparison information, and schedules of the City of Rio Grande City's
identified as Required Supplementary Information in the table of contents be presented to supplement the basic
financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the
Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for
placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have
applied certain limited procedures to the Required Supplementary Information in accordance with auditing
standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management
about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with
management's responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained
during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on
the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an
opinion or provide any assurance.

Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively
comprise the City of Rio Grande City, Texas's basic financial statements. The combining and individual
nonmajor fund financial statements are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not required
parts of the basic financial statements.

The combining and individual nonmajor fund financial statements are the responsibility of management and
were derived from and relate directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic
financial statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the
basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such
information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial
statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance
with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the combining and
individual nonmajor fund financial statements are fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic
financial statements as a whole.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated January 13,
2016 on our consideration of City of Rio Grande City, Texas's internal control over financial reporting and on
our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and
other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over
financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal
control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in
accordance with Government Audiling Standards in considering City of Rio Grande City, Texas's internal
control over financial reporting and compliance.

Respectfully submitted,

/M//"""‘W% 4’7‘7/ /D <.

Raul Hernandez & Company, P.C.

Corpus Christi, Texas
January 13, 2016
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CITY OF RIO GRANDE CITY, TEXAS
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
September 30, 2014

Our discussion and analysis of the City’s financial performance provides an overview of the City’s
financial activities for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2014. Please read it in conjunction with
the City’s financial statements, which follow this section.

Financial Highlights

» The City’s total net position increased by $3,587,244 for the year, which is a change of 1.7%.
The governmental activities increase was $3,436,044 while the business-type activities showed an
increase of $151,200.

+ Last year’s decrease in sales tax revenues of ($3,085,451) was followed by an increase in sales
tax revenues of $1,555,253 for 2014.

* There were a few changes in both revenues and certain expenses of the utility fund. Charges for
services revenues decreased by $35,581. In addition, personnel services increased $95,249, Whlle
materials & supplies decreased in the amount of ($604,577).

» The City added $7,763,778 to capital assets during the year, with the vast majority of those
additions related to construction projects for construction in progress as part of road construction
in the governmental activities. Capital additions include reconstruction on taxiways & runways for
the airport, multi-use complex, buildings & improvements, reconstruction on infrastructure, and
waterline upgrades, among others. Depreciation expense of $514,577 was also recorded for the
year.

Overview of the Financial Statements

The basic financial statements consist of government-wide financial statements, fund financial
statements, and notes to the financial statements. This report also contains other supplementary
information in addition to the basic financial statements.

Government-wide financial statements

The Statement of Net position and the Statement of Activities are government-wide financial
statements, The government-wide financial statements provide information about the activities of
the City as a whole and present a longer-term view of the City’s finances. These statements include
all assets and liabilities of the City, and the statements are presented on the accrual basis of
accounting, which is similar to the accounting used by most private-sector companies.

Activities of the City as a whole include governmental activities, and business-type activities.
Governmental activities are those activities which are financed primarily through taxes and grants.

3.




CITY OF RIO GRANDE CITY, TEXAS
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
(Continued)

Most of the City’s basic services are reported as governmental activities. Business-type activities
are those activities which ate intended to recover all or a significant portion of their costs through
user fees and charges. Utility system operations are a common example of business-type activities.
The City has no component vnits. Component units are legally separate organizations for which
the City is financially accountable. Whenever a City is financially accountable for activities of a
legally separate organization, those activities are reported in the government-wide financial
statements as component unit activities.

The accrual basis of accounting used for the government-wide financial statements recognizes
revenues when earned and expenses when incurred regardless of when cash is received or paid.

Fund financial statements

Fund financial statements are used to present more detailed information about the City’s most
significant funds. Separate fund financial statements are prepared for the City’s governmental
funds and proprietary funds, as opposed to the government-wide statements which reflect the City
as a whole.

Fund financial statements are prepared using the measurement focus and basis of accounting
applicable to each broad fund category. Governmental fund financial statements are presented on
a spending or “financial flow” measurement focus using the modified accrual basis of accounting.
Proprietary fund financial statements are presented on a cost of services or “capital maintenance”
measurement focus using the accrual basis of accounting, Because the proprietary fund financial
statements are presented using the same measurement focus and basis of accounting as the
government-wide financial statements, the totals from the proprictary fund financial statements
flow directly into the business-type activities column of the government-wide financial statements.
For the governmental funds, reconciliation is presented to describe the differences between the net
position, and change in net position reported in the governmental fund financial statements and
the net position, and change in net position reported in the governmental activities column of the
government-wide financial statements.

Notes to the financial statements

The notes provide additional information that is essential to a complete understanding of the
information provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements.

Condensed Financial Information

Condensed financial information is presented in the following tables in a comparative format
which allows for the comparison of current and prior year information.
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CITY OF RIO GRANDE CITY, TEXAS
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
(Continued)

Government-wide net position

Governmental Business-type Total
Activities Activities Primary Govermment
2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013
Current and other assets $ 7,442,034 4,956,273 3,387,747 3,704,402 10,829,781 8,660,675
Capital assets 13,469,097 11,899,802 31,273,654 31,776,824 44742751 43,676,626
Total assets 20,911,131 16,856,075 34,661,401 35,481,226 55,572,532 52,337,301
Long-term liabilities 8,070,573 6,753,564 21,426,442 22,249,618 20,497,015 29,003,182
Other liabilities 590,969 1,288,966 495 428 643,277 1,086,397 1,932,243
Total liabilitics 8,661,542 8,042,530 21,921,870 22,892,895 30,583,412 30,935,425
Net position:
Invested in capital
assets, net of debt 5,398,524 5,146,238 9,847,212 9,523,206 15,245,736 14,669,444
Restricted 1,129,810 267,655 - - 1,129,810 267,655
Unrestricted 5,721,255 3,399,652 2,892,319 3,065,125 8,613,574 0,464,777
Total net position $ 12,249,589 8,813,545 12,739,531 12,588,331 24,989,120 21,401,876

The City’s governmental activities showed a decrease in net position of $3,436,044. Capital assets
for governmental activities increased by $1,569,295,

More detailed information relating to the change in net position, the change in capital assets, and
the change in long-term liabilities is discussed in the pages to follow.

Government-wide changes in net position

Governmental Business-type Total
Activities Activities Primary Govermment
2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013
Change in net assets

Total revenues $ 10,623,988 8,044,697 4,931,725 5,028,221 15,555,713 13,072,918
Total expenses (8,431,189) (7,183,091) {3,537,191) (3,642,106) (11,968,380) (10,825,197)

Change before transfers 2,192,799 861,606 1,394,534 1,386,115 3,587,333 2,247,721

Transfers 1,243,334 1,551,044 (1,243,334) (1,551,044) - -

Special Items - Resources (20,622,529) 20,622,529 -

Special Items - Uses 21,345,000 (21,345,000) -

Change in net position 3,436,133 3,135,121 151,200 (887,400} 3,587,333 2,247,721

Net position - beginning 8,813,456 6,914,793 12,588,331 13,475,731 21,401,787 20,390,524
Reclass of Beg Net Position - (1,236,458) - - - (1,236,458)

Net position - ending $ 12,249,589 8,813,456 12,739,531 12,588,331 24,989,120 21,401,787




CITY OF RIO GRANDE CITY, TEXAS
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION ANDD ANALYSIS
(Continued)

The specific changes in revenues and expenses are shown in the tables that follow, along with a
discussion of the events giving rise to those changes.

Governmental Business-type Total
Activities Activities Primary Government
2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013
Revenues
Program revenues:
Charges for services 3 1,967,115 - 4,929,778 4,894,197 6,896,893 4,894,197
General revenues:
Maintenance and
Operations Taxes 2,815478 1,986,427 - - 2,815,478 1,986,427
Debt Service Taxes 592,324 790,420 - - 592,324 796,420
Grants 874,727 1,082,927 - - 874,727 1,082,927
Sales tax 4,276,271 2,721,018 - - 4,276,271 2,721,018
Franchise taxes - 643,536 - - - 643,536
Investment Harnings 4,854 6,343 1,947 - 6,801 6,343
Miscellaneous 93,219 814,026 - 134,024 93,219 948,050
Total revenues $ 10,623,988 8,044,697 4,931,725 5,028,221 15,555,713 13,072,918

Last year’s decrease in sales tax revenues of ($3,085,451) was followed by an increase in sales tax
revenues of $1,555,253 for 2014. The decrease in the sales tax was due to changes in the
economical conditions in the City of Rio Grande City.

There were a few changes in both revenues and certain expenses of the utility fund. Charges for
services revenues decreased by $35,581. In addition, personnel services increased $95,249, while

materials & supplies decreased in the amount of ($604,577).

There was an increase of $35,581 for service revenues. There was an increase in the utility fund
personnel costs of (395,249) was attributed to several vacant positions.




CITY OF RIO GRANDE CITY, TEXAS
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

(Continued)
Governmental Business-type Total
Activities Activities Primary Government
2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013
Expenses
General Government $ 1,530,897 1,007,427 - - 1,530,897 1,007,427
Judicial 136,927 137,784 - - 136,927 137,784
Public safety 3,165,442 3,765,661 - - 3,165,442 3,765,661
Public works 979,914 (47,368) - - 979914 (47,368)
Highways and Streets 182,206 146,870 - - 182,206 146,870
Culture and Recreation 316,814 312,808 - - 316,814 312,808
Libraries 237,268 214,454 - - 237,268 214,454
Conservation & Development 316,895 308,551 - - 316,895 308,551
Economic Development 841,154 722,331 - - 841,154 722,331
Bond Interest & Cap Qutlay 723,672 614,573 - - 723,672 614,573
Utility Fund - - 3,537,191 3,642,106 3,537,191 3,642,106
Total expenses $ 8,431,189 7,183,091 3,537,191 3,642,106 11,968,380 10,825,197

General Fund departmental expenses (net of depreciation) had an overall increase due to a two
percent cost of living increase, a contribution to TxDOT for HWY 44 beautification and
improvements, and an increase in general liability insurance premiums. Public works, however,
experienced a decrease in expenses by ($1,027,282) in 2014, which was a result of the filling of
vacancies from 2013.

Financial Analysis of the City’s Funds

The City did experience high sales tax increases. Towards the last four months of 2015 and into
2016, the sales have been decreasing compated to the previous year (2014). We attribute some of
this loss in local sales to the lay-off of pipe liners. Many residents were working in the pipe lines
and would send the money to their families.

The city has maintained the same tax rate for the past three fiscal years, and adopted a conservative
budget for 2015-2016.

The resignation of previous Mayor Ruben O. Villarreal prompted a Special Election in 2015 that
was not budgeted, and the money received from the sales tax of the gas line going into Mexico
allowed to purchase a building for the relocation of City Hall. The General Fund participated with
$927,00. The Public Utility Fund participated with $400,00. The RGC Economic Development
Corporation purchased Suite B from the City and paid $400,000.

The RGC EDC re-constructed the courtyard at the Kelsey Bass Building, furthering the tourism
efforts in the Historic Main Street. In 2015 we were funded a grant for $1.2 million from the
Economic Development Administration for drainage improvements that would protect public
infrastructure and support new business development.

-7-




CITY OF RIO GRANDE CITY, TEXAS
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
(Continued)

The City completed a Texas Department of Agriculture grant, (Project #713408) for $293,417 that

-provided first time sewer service to 29 homes. Currently, the city is completing applications to

the Texas Water Development Board for funding to replace an elevated water storage tank.

Regarding the other governmental funds, the debt service fund levied taxes sufficient to cover the
governimental debt service requirements as well as a portion of the utility fund debt service (which
was transferred to the utility fund) and ended the year with a $88,416 fund balance. The debt
service fund has fund balance greater than the annual debt service requirement of the governmental
debt. The capital depreciation fund was established and has been maintained with transfers from
the general fund to set aside excess sales tax revenue to be used for major capital expenditures.

As discussed above, the utility fund's operations ended the year with a $151,200 increase in net
position. Of course that net increase is also after the annual transfer from the general fund to the
utility fund, which amounted to $1,243,334 this year. The utility fund has net position of
$12,739,531 at the end of the year. However, $9,847,212 is restricted for investment in capital
assets, net of related debt. Unrestricted net position of $2,892,319 represents over 3 months in
terms of the utility system’s annual expenses including net transfers out.

General Fund Budgetary Highlights

The City Council approved various amendments to the original budget prior to the end of the year.
Appropriations for expenditures including transfers out were by $12,312,057 in the final budget.

Capital Asset and Debt Administration
Capital assets

'The following capital asset information is presented net of depreciation. More detailed information
can be found on pages 42 and 43 in the notes to the financial statements.

Governmental Business-type Total

Activities Activities Primary Government

2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013
Land b 1,075,865 1,075,865 339,036 339,036 1,414,901 1,414,901
Infrastructure, net 1,274,393 528,601 34,037,080 34,037,080 35,311,473 34,565,081
Buildings, net 8,526,433 2,846,529 1,592,023 1,583,800 10,118,456 4,430,329
Machinery and Equipment, net 2,592,405 1,768,903 651,888 525,042 3,244,293 2,293,945

Capital Assets, net - - (5,346,373) (4,708,134) (5,346,373) (4,708,134)

Construction in Progress - 5,679,904 - - - 5,679,904
Other Assets - 150 - 824 - 974
Total revenues 8 13,469,096 11,899,952 31,273,654 31,777,648 44,742,750 43,677,600

-8-




CITY OF RIO GRANDE CITY, TEXAS
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
(Continued)

The City added approximately $7,989,845 to capital assets during the year, with the vast majority
of those additions related to construction projects for construction in progress as part of road
construction in the governmental activities. Capital additions include reconstruction on taxiways
& runways for the airport, multi-use complex, buildings & improvements, reconstruction on
infrastructure, and waterline upgrades, among others. Depreciation expense of $1,152,816 was
also recorded for the year.

Debt

More detailed information on the City’s debt can be found on pages 32-34 in the notes to the
financial statements.

Governmental Business-type Total
Activities Activities Primary Government
2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013
General obligation debt $ 7,546,756 6,608,353 21,261,000 22,020,000 28,807,756 28,628,353
Capital leases payable 523,817 145,311 165,442 229,618 689,259 374,929
Total revenues $ 8,070,573 6,753,064 21,426,442 22,249,618 29,497,015 29,003,282

The City’s general obligation bond rating is A+ as assigned by the national rating agency Standard
and Poor’s. There is no direct debt limitation in the City Charter or under state law. The Texas
Constitution does limit the maximum tax rate for all City purposes to $2.50 per $100 of assessed
valuation, and administratively, the Attorney General will permit allocation of $1.50 of the $2.50
maximum tax rate to the payment of debt service. The actual amount of debt the City might be
able to fund with that tax rate depends on the term over which the debt is to be repaid, the interest
rate on the debt, and the amount of taxes which are not collected. The City’s current debt service
tax rate is $0.112724.

Economic Factors and Next Year’s Budgets and Rates

The City did experience high sales tax increases. Towards the last four month of 2015 and into
2016, the sales have been decreasing compared to the previous year (2014). We attribute some of
this loss in local sales to the lay-off of pipe liners. Many residents were working in the pipe lines
and would send the money to their families. The City has maintained the same tax rate for the past
three fiscal years, and adopted a conservative budget for 2015-2016. The resignation of previous
Mayor Ruben O. Villarreal prompted a Special Election in 2015 that was not budgeted, and the
money received from the sales tax of the gas line going into Mexico allowed to purchase a building
for the relocation of City Hail. The General Fund participated with $§927,00. The Public Utility
Fund participated with $400,00. The RGC Economic Development Corporation purchased Suite
B from the City and paid $400,000.

9-




CITY OF RIO GRANDE CITY, TEXAS
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANAILYSIS
(Continued)

The RGC EDC re-constructed the courtyard at the Kelsey Bass Building, furthering the tourism
efforts in the Historic Main Street. In 2015 we were funded a grant for $1.2 million from the
Economic Development Administration for drainage improvements that would protect public
infrastructure and support new business development. The City completed a Texas Department of
Agriculture grant, (Project #713408) for $293,417 that provided first time sewer service to 29
homes. Currently, the City is completing applications to the Texas Water Development Board for
funding to replace an elevated water storage tank. The City’s elected officials considered many
factors when setting the 2015 budget. The City was conservative in the amount budgeted for sales
tax in 2015. For 2015, the City budgeted $267,664 more than budgeted for 2014 but projected to
receive $797,652 less than the actual amount received in 2014 in revenues. The City Council
adopted a tax rate of $.514749 per $100 valuation, which was an increase of $0.000589 per $100
valuation from the previous year, resulting from a decrease in the overall property tax base.

Contacting the City’s Financial Management

This financial report is designed to provide our citizens, taxpayers, customers, investors and
creditors with a general overview of the City’s finances and to show the City’s accountability for
the money it receives. If you have questions about this report or need additional financial
information, please direct your requests to the Director of Finance, City of Rio Grande City, and
101 S. Washington Street, Rio Grande City, Texas, 78582,

-10-
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EXHIBIT A-1

CITY OF RIO GRANDE CITY, TEXAS
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
SEPTEMBER 30, 2014

Governmental Business-iype
Agctivilies Activities _ Total
ASSETS:
Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 4,908,667 $ 1,761,004 $ 6,667,671
Investments-Current 1,787,252 805,408 2,592,660
Taxes Receivables ( net of allowances for uncollectibles): 244,352 1,126,848 1,371,200
Accounts Receivable 146,446 {320,808) (174,360)
Intergovernmental Receivable 357,317 - 357,317
Inventorigs - 15,293 15,293
Capital Assets { net of accumulated depreciation):
Land 1,075,866 339,036 1,414,902
Buildings and System 8,526,433 1,592,023 10,118,456
Machinery and Equipment 2,592,405 651,888 3,244,283
Infrastructure 1,274,293 34,037,080 35,311,473
Accumulated Deprecialion - {5,346,373) {5,346,373)
Total Assets 20,911,131 34,661,401 55572532
LIABILITIES:
Accounts Payable and Other Current Liabilities 115,531 14,362 126,893
Accrued Wages Payable 161,363 32,298 193,661
Accrued Interest Payable 70,035 108,885 178,920
Unearned Revenue 244,040 8,255 252,285
Liabilities Payable from Restricted Assels - 331,628 331,628
Noncurrent Liabilities-
Due within one year 494,843 768,689 1,263,532
Due in more than one year 7,575,730 20,657,753 28,233,483
Total Liabilities 8,661,542 21,821,870 30,583,412
NET POSITION:
Net Investment in Capital Assets 5,398,524 9,847,212 15,245,736
Restricted For:
Debt Service 418,416 - 418,416
Capital Projects 711,384 - 711,394
Unrestricted 5,721,255 2,892,319 8,613,574
Total Nel Position $ 12,249,589 $ 12,739,531 $ 24,989,120

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.
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CITY OF RIO GRANDE CITY, TEXAS
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2014

Functions/Programs

PRIMARY GOVERNMENT:
Governmental! Activities:
General Government
Public Safely
Judicial
Streets and Lighting
Public Works
Culture, Recreatfon & Farks
Library
Urban Redevelopment and Housing
Economic Development and Assistance
interest on Long-term Debi
Fiscal Agent Fees
Total Governmental Activities

Business-type Activities;
Water, Sewer, & Sanitation
Total Business-type Activities
Total Primary Government

Program Revenues

Charges for
Expenses Services
$ 1,530,897 833,121
3,165,442 899,890
136,927 150,692
182,206 -
979,914 -
316,814
237,268
316,895
841,154 -
693,679
29,983 --
8,431,189 1,967,115
3,637,191 4,929,778
© 3,587,191 4,929,778
$ 11,968,380 6,896,893

General Revenues:
Property Taxes
Sales Taxes

Operating
Grants and

Contributions

768,221

T 758,221

$

758,221

Grants and Contributions Not Restricted to Specific Programs

Investment Earnings

Miscellaneous Revenues

Transfers

Total General Revenues and Transfers

Change in Net Assets
Net Assets - Beginning
Net Assets - Ending

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.
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EXHIBIT A-2

Net (Expense) Revenue and Changss in Net Pasilion

Governmental Business-type
Activities __Aclivities Total
$ (697,776) $ (697,776)
(1,507,331} {1,507,331)
13,765 13,765
(182,206) (182,206)
(979,914) (979,914)
(316,814) (316,814}
(237,268) (237,268)
(316,895) (316,895)
(841,154) (841,154)
(693,679) (693,679)
{29,993) - (29,993)
_ (5,705,853) {5,705,853)
-- $ 1,392,587 1,392,587
-- 1,392,587 1,392,587
(5,705,853) 1,392,587 {4,313,2686)
3,407,891 - 3,407,891
4,276,271 -- 4,276,271
116,506 -- 116,506
4,854 1,947 6,801
93,219 - 93,219
1,243,334 (1,243,334) -
9,142,075 {1,241,387) 7,900,688
3,436,133 151,200 3,587,333
8,813,456 12,588,331 21,401,787

$ 12249589 §$ 12,738,531 § 24,980,120
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CITY OF RIO GRANDE CITY, TEXAS
BALANCE SHEET - GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2014

ASSETS AND OTHER DEBITS

Assetls:
Cash and Cash Equivalenls
Investmenis

Receivables { net of allowances for uncollectibles):

Due from Other Funds
Tolal Assets and Other Debits

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANGCES:
Liabilities:
Accounts Payable
Accrued Wages Payable
Due to Other Funds
Accrued Interest Payable
Total Liabilities

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOQURCES
Unavallable Revenue-Property Taxes
Total Deferred Inflows of Resources

Fund Balances:
Restricted Fund Balances:
Federal or State Funds Grant Restriction
Restricted for Debt Service
Assigned
Committed
Construction
Unassigned Fund Balance
Total Fund Balance

Total Liabilities and Fund Balance

EXHIBIT A-3

Economic Other Totat
General Development Governmental Governmental

Fund Corporation Funds Funds
% 1,832,806 § 526,726 § 2,647,132 § 4,906,664
264,889 1,482,525 39,838 1,787,262
302,485 71,993 373,637 748,115
189,578 57,577 508 247,663
$ 2589758 $  2,138821 $  2961,115 $__ 7,689,694
$ 79479 § 3,937 § 32,115 §% 115,531
161,363 -- - 161,363
508 809 246,346 247,663
-- -- 70,035 70,035
241,350 4,746 348,496 594,592
163,808 80,232 244,040
B 163,808 80,232 244,040
- - 375,860 375,860
- -- 88,416 88,416
- 2,134,075 296,557 2,430,632
-- - 1,771,554 1,771,554
2,184,600 - - -- 2,184,600
2,184,600 2,134,075 2,632,387 6,851,062
$ 2,589,758 § 2,138,821 $ 2,961,115 $ 7,689,694

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.
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EXHIBIT A-4
CITY OF RIO GRANDE CITY, TEXAS
RECONGILIATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS BALANCE SHEET
TO THE STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
SEPTEMBER 30, 2014

Total fund balances - governmental funds balance sheet $ 6,851,062

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement of Net Position
are different because:

Capital assets used in governmental aclivities are not reported in the funds. 13,469,100
Payables for bond principal which are not due in the current period are not reporied in the funds. (7,355,000)
Payables for capital leases which are not due in the current period are not reported in the funds. {523,817}
Payables for notes which are not due in the current period are nol reported in the funds. {191,7586)
Net position of governmental activities - Statement of Net Position $ 12,249,589

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.
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CITY OF RIO GRANDE CITY, TEXAS

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES

IN FUND BALANCES - GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2014

Revenue:
Taxes:
General Property Taxes
General Sales and Use Taxes
Beveerage Taxes
Cther Taxes - Franchise Taxes
Penally and Interest on Deliquent Taxes
License and Permits
Intergovernmental
Charges for Services
Fines and Forfeitures
Investment Earnings
Rents and Royalties
Miscellaneous Revenues
Total revenues

Expenditures;
Current:

General Government

Public Safety

Judicial

Highways and Sireels

Public Works

Culture, Recreation & Parks

Library

Conservation and Development

Economic Development and Assistance
Debt Service:

Principal

Interest and Fiscal Charges

Fiscal Agent's Fees
Capital Outlay:

Capital Outlay

Total Expenditures
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Cver (Under} Expenditures

Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Operating Transfers In
Operating Transfers Out
Other Financing Sources
Capital Leases
Total Gther Financing Sources (Uses)

Net Change in Fund Balances

Fund Balances - Beginning
Fund Balances - Ending

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.

EXHIBIT A-5

Economic Other Total
General Development Governmental Governmental
Fund Corporation Funds Funds
$ 2,880,002 % - $ 592,324 § 3,482,326
2,839,440 1,436,831 - 4,276,271
8,503 - - 8,503
648,972 - 15,267 664,239
81,525 - - 61,525
75,849 -- -- 75,849
241,232 - 701,639 942,871
108,300 - 2,905 111,205
150,692 - 899,890 1,050,582
1,405 1,552 1,896 4,853
23,045 -- -- 23,045
69,092 10,249 13,878 93,219
7,118,057 1,448,632 2,227,799 10,794,488
1,441,362 - 89,534 1,530,896
3,029,907 -- 616,037 3,645,944
136,927 - -- 136,927
182,206 -- - 182,206
979,914 - 979,914
316,814 - 316,814
237,268 - 237,268
316,895 -- -- 316,895
-- 825,350 15,804 841,154
150,726 -- 373,867 524,593
19,023 -- 611,370 630,393
-- - 29,993 29,993
-- -- 1,750,479 1,750,479
6,811,042 825,350 3,487,084 11,123,476
307,015 623,282  {1,259,285) {328,988)
755,834 35,000 755,945 1,546,779
(3,244) (235,201) (65,000) {303,445)
-- - 1,930,000 1,930,000
508,813 -- -- 509,813
1,262,403 {200,201} 2,620,945 3,683,147
1,569,418 423,081 1,361,660 3,354,159
_ " 615,182 1,710,994 1,170,727 3,496,903
$ 2,1848600 § 2,134,075 §% 2,532,387 $ 6,851,062
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EXHIBIT A-8
CITY OF RIO GRANDE CITY, TEXAS

RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,

AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2014

Net change in fund balances - total governmental funds $ 3,354,159

Amounts reported for governmental aclivities in the Stalement of Activilies
("SOA"} are different because:

Capital outiays are nol reported as expenses in the SOA. 2,086,873
The depreciation of capital assets used in governmental activities is not reported in the funds. (517,577)
Certain property tax revenues are deferred in the funds. This is the change in these amounts this year. (170,503}
Repayment of bond principal is an expenditure in the funds but is not an expense in the SOA. 949,498
Repayment of capital lease principal is an expenditure in the funds but is not an expense in the SOA. 131,307
Repayment of loan principal is an expenditure in the funds but is not an expense in the SOA. 42,189
Proceeds of honds do not provide revenue in the SOA, but are reported as current resources In the funds. (1,930,000}
Proceeds of leases do not provide revenue in the SOA, bui are reported as current resources in the funds. (509,813)
Change in net position of governmental activities - Statement of Activities $ 3,436,133

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.
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CITY OF RIO GRANDE CITY, TEXAS
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

ENTERPRISE FUND

SEPTEMBER 30, 2014

ASSETS:
Current Assets:
Cash and Cash Equivalenis
investments
Receivables ( net of alfowances for uncolleciibles):
Inventories
Total Current Assets

Noncurrent Assets:
Restricted Cash, Cash Equivalents and Investments-
Capital Assets: {net of accumulated depreciation)
Land
Infrastruciure
Buildings
Machinery and Equipment
Accumulated Depreciation
Total Noncurrent Assets
Total Assets

LIABILITIES:
Current Liabilitiss:
Accounis payable
Accrued Wages Payable
Accrued interest payable
Deferred revente
Total Current Liabilities
Current Liabilities Payable from Restricted Assets-
Customer Deposits
Total Current Liabilities Payable
From Restricted Assets
Noncurrent Liabilities:
Due within one year
Due in more than one year
Total Noncurrent Liabilities
Total Lighilities

NET ASSETS:
Net Investment in Capital Assets
Unrestricted Net Position

Total Net Assets

Enterprise
Fund
Water, Sewer
& Sanitation
Fund

$ 1,761,004
805,408
806,042

15,293
3,387 747

339,036
34,037,080
1,592,023
651,868

_________ (5,346,373)

31,273,654
$ 34,661,401

$ 14,362
32,298

108,885

8,255

163,800

331,628
331,628

768,689
20,657,753
21,758,070

9,847,212
2,892,319
$ 12,739,531
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CITY OF RIO GRANDE CITY, TEXAS

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES

IN FUND NET POSITION - ENTERPRISE FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2014

OPERATING REVENUES:
Charges for Sales and Services:
Water Sales
Sawer Charges
Sanitation Charges
Other Services
Total Cperating Revenues

OPERATING EXPENSES:
Billings and Collections
Personal Services - Salaries and Wages
Other Purchased Services
Supplies
Tolal Billings and Collectins
Water System
Personal Services - Salaries and Wages
Other Purchased Services
Supplies
Total Waler System
Sewer System
Personal Services - Salaries and Wages
FPurchased Professional and Technical Services
Other Purchased Services
Toltal Sewer Syslem
Water Plant #1
Personal Services - Salaries and Wages
Other Purchased Services
Supplies
Total Water Plant #1
Water Distripution
Personal Services - Salarias and Wages
Othar Purchased Services
Supplies
Total Water Distribution
Sewer Collection
Personal Services - Salarios and Wages
Purchased Professional and Technical Services
Other Purchased Services
Total Sewer Collection
Sold Waste Billing
Personal Services - Salaries and Wages
Othar Purchased Services
Supplies
Depreciation Expense
Total Solid Wasle Billing
Total Operating Expenses

Operating Incoms
NON-OPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES):
Interest Expense
Total Non-operating Revenues (Expenses)
Income before Transfers

Interfund Operating Transfers In
Interfund Operating Transfers Out

Change in Net Assels

Total Net Assets - Beginning
Tatal Net Assets - Ending

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.

EXHIBIT A-8

Enterprise
Fund
Water, Sewar
& Sanitation
Fund

$ 3,381,547
1,491,455
44,793

13,930
4,931,725

109,872

53,587
47,988
211,445

184,487
240,005
194,035
618,617

40,721
113,303
228,696
382,720

226,551
285,705
110,725
632,981

275,989
231,692

78,831
- 5H

20,720
16,213
15,287
52,220

25,576
3,298
8,317

638,239
675,431

1,641,868

(147,334)

{147,334)
1,394,534

{1,243,334)
151,200

12,588,331
$ 12,739,531
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CITY OF RIO GRANDE CITY, TEXAS
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

PROPRIETARY FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2014

Cash Flows from Operating Activities:
Cash Received from User Charges
Operating Transactions with Other Funds
Cash Paymenis to Employees for Services
Cash Payments to Qther Suppliers for Goods and Services
Other Operating Cash Receipts (Payments)
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities

Cash Flows from Non-capital Financing Activities:
Transfers From (To} Primary Government
Transfers From (To} Other Funds

Net Cash Provided (Used) by Non-capital Financing Activilies

Cash Flows from Capital and Related Financing Acfivities:
Principal and Interest Paid
Acquisition or Construction of Capital Assels
Acquisition of Capital Assets
Contributed Capital

EXHIBIT A-9

Enterprise Funds

Net Cash Provided (Used) for Capital & Related Financing Activitie {1,105,579)

Cash Flows from Investing Activities:
Purchase of Investment Sectirities
Proceeds from Sale and Maturities of Securities
interest and Dividends on Investments

Net Cash Provided (Used) for Investing Aclivities

Net increase {Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and Cash Equivalents at Beginning of Year
Cash and Cash Equivalents at End of Year

Reconciliation of Operating Income to Net Cash
Provided by Operating Activities:
Operating Income {Loss)
Adjustments to Reconcile Operating Income to Net Cash
Provided by Operating Aclivilies
Depreciation
Change in Assets and Liabilities:
Decrease (Increase) in Receivables
increase (Decrease) in Accounts Payable
Increase (Decrease) in Interfund Payables
Increase (Decrease) in Accrued Expenses
Increase (Decrease) in Unearned Revenue
Total Adjustments
Net Cash Provided {Used) by Operating Activities

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.

Maior

Fund Totals
$ 5,279,061 $ 5,279,061
(886,916) (886,916)
(2,011,727) (2,011,727)
2,380,418 2,380,418
(1,243,334)  (1,243,234)
(1,243,334)  (1,243,334)
(970,510} {970,510)
(135,069) {135,069)
(1,105,579)
63,730 63,730
63,730 63,730
95,235 95,235
1,665,769 1,665,769
$ 1,761,004 $ 1,761,004
$ 1,541,868 $ 1,541,868
638,239 638,239
347,336 347,336
(257,475) (257,475)
9,482 9,482
100,968 100,968
838,550 838,550
$ 2380418 § 2380418
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CITY OF RIO GRANDE CITY, TEXAS
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2014

L T1 POLICIE

The combined financial statements of the City of Rio Grande City, Texas (the *City) have been prepared in
conformity with accounting principles applicable to governmental units which are generally accepted in the
United States of America. The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (“GASB”) is the accepted
standard settling body for establishing governmental accounting and financial reporting principles.

A, REPORTING ENTITY

The City’s basic financial statements include the accounts of all its operations. The City evaluated whether
any other entity should be included in these financial statements. The criteria for including organizations as
component units within the City’s reporting entity, as set forth in GASB Statement No. 14, “The Financial
Reporting Entity”, include whether:

The organization is legally separate (can sue and be sued in its name)

The City holds the corporate powers of the organization

The City appoints a voting majority to the organization’s board

The city is able to impose its will on the organization

The organization has the potential to impose a financial benefit/burden on the City

There is fiscal dependency by the organization on the City

The exclusion of the organization would result in misleading or incomplete financial statements

* * & & & »

The City also evaluated each legally separate, tax — exempt organization whose resources are used principally
to provide support to the City to deterinine if its omission from the reporting entity would result in financial
statements that are misleading or incomplete. GASB Statement No. 14 requires inclusion of such an
organization as a component unit when: 1) The economic resources received or held by the organization
are entirely or almost entirely for the direct benefit of the City, its component units, or its constituents;
and 2} The City or its component units is entitled to, or has the ability to otherwise access, a majority of the
economic resources received or held by the organization; and 3) Such economic resources are significant to
the City.

Based on these criteria, the City has no component units. Additionally, the City is not a component unit of
any other reporting entity as defined by the GASB statement.

The citizens of the City voted on May 1, 1993 to incorporate the City of Rio Grande City, Texas. The City
operates under a Mayor — City Council form of government and provides the following services as
authorized by its charter: public improvements, utilities {water and sewer), code enforcement, judicial and
election functions, and general administrative services.

On May 18, 1998, a court order was issued ordering the Starr County Water Control and Improvement
District No. 2 to relinquish all property, assets, and all control of the (former) Water District to the control
of the City. This action was effective as of May 15, 1998, at which time the (former) Water District was
assimilated into the operations of the City as the Public Utilities Department, an Enterprise Fund,
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B. GOYERNMENT-WIDE AND FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of Activities are government-wide financial statements.
They report information on ali of the City’s nonfiduciary activities with most of the interfund activities
removed. Governmental activities include programs supported primarily by taxes, State funds, grants and
other infergovernmental revenuecs. Business-type activities include operations that rely to a significant
extent on fees and charges for support.

The Statement of Activities demonstrates how other people or entities that participate in programs the City
operates have shared in the payment of the direct costs. The "charges for services" column includes
payments made by patties that purchase, use, or directly benefit from goods or services provided by a given
function or segment of the City. The "grants and contributions" column includes amounts paid by
organizations outside the City to help meet the operational or capital requirements of a given function. If a
revenue is not a program revenue, it is a general revenue used to support all of the City's functions. Taxes
are always general revenues.

Interfund activities between governmental funds and between governmental funds and proprietary funds
appear as due to/due froms on the Governmental Fund Balance Sheet and Proprietary Fund Statement of
Net Assets and as other resources and other uses on the governmental fund Statement of Revenues,
Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance and on the Proprietary Fund Statement of Revenues, Expenses
and Changes in Fund Net Assets. All interfund transactions between governmental funds are eliminated on
the government-wide statements. Interfund activities between povernmental funds and enterprise funds
remain on the government-wide statements and appear on the government-wide Statement of Net Assets as
internal balances and on the Statement of Activities as interfund transfers. Interfund activities between
governmental funds and fiduciary funds remain as due to/due froms on the government-wide Statement of
Activities.

The fund financial statements provide reports on the financial condition and results of operations for three
fund categories - governmental, proprietary, and fiduciary. Since the resources in the fiduciary funds
cannot be used for City operations, they are not inchided in the government-wide statements. The City
considers some governmental and enterprise funds major and reports their financial condition and results of
operations in a separate column.

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items. Operating revenues
result from providing goods and services in connection with a proprietary fund’s principal ongoing
operations; they usually come from exchange or exchange-like transactions. All other revenues are
nonoperating. Operating expenses can be tied specifically to the production of the goods and services, such
as materials and labor and direct overhead. Other expenses are nonoperating.

C. MEASUREMENT FOCUS, BASIS OF ACCOUNTING, AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT
PRESENTATION

The government-wide financial statements use the economic resources measurement focus and the accrual
basis of accounting, as do the proprietary fund and fiduciary fund financial statements. Revenues are
recorded when earned and expenses are recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of the
related cash flows. Property taxes are recognized as revenues in the year for which they are levied. Grants
and similar items are recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility requirements imposed by the provider
have been met.

Governmental fund financial statements use the current financial resources measurement focus and the
modified accrual basis of accounting, With this measurement focus, only current assets, current liabilities
and fund balances are included on the balance sheet. Operating statements of these funds present net
increases and decreases in current assets (i.e., revenues and other financing sources and expenditures and
other financing uses).
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The modified accrual basis of accounting recognizes revenues in the accounting period in which they
become both measurable and available , and it recognizes expenditures in the accounting period in which
the fund liability is incurred, if measurable, except for un-matured interest and principal on long-term debt,
which is recognized when due. The expenditures related to cerfain compensated absences and claims and
Jjudgments are recognized when the obligations are expected to be liquidated with expendable available
financial resources. The City considers all revenues available if they are collectible within 60 days after
year end.

Revenues from Jocal sources consist primarily of property taxes. Property tax revenues and revenues
received from the State are recognized under the "susceptible to accrual” concept, that is, when they are
both measurable and available. The City considers them "available" if they will be collected within 60 days
of the end of the fiscal year, Miscellaneous revenues are recorded as revenue when received in cash
because they are generally not measurable until actually received. Investment earnings are recorded as
earned, since they are both measurable and available.

Grant funds are considered to be earned to the extent of expenditures made under the provisions of the
grant. Accordingly, when such funds are received, they are recorded as deferred revenues until related and
authorized expenditures have been made. If balances have not been expended by the end of the project
period, grantors sometimes require tire City to refund all or part of the unused amount.

The Proprietary Fund Types and Fiduciary Funds are accounted for on a flow of economic resources
measurement focus and utilize the accrual basis of accounting. This basis of accounting recognizes
revenues in the accounting period in which they are earned and become measurable and expenses in the
accounting period in which they are incurred and become measurable. The City applies all GASB
pronouncements as well as the Financial Accounting Standards Board pronouncements issued on or before
November 30, 1989, uniess these pronouncements conflict or contradict GASB pronouncements, With this
measurement focus, all assets and all liabilities associated with the operation of these funds are included on
the fund statement of Net Assets. The fund equity is segregated info invested in capital assets net of related
debt, restricted net assets, and unarestricted net assets.

On October 1, 2012, the District adopted GASB Statement No. 63 Financial Reporting of Deferred
Chuitflows of Resources, Deferred Inflows of Resowrces, and Net Position and early implemented GASB
Statement No. 65 Items Previously Reported As Assets and Liabilities as encouraged by GASB. As a result
of the adoption of these new accounting standards, a restatement of beginning net position at the
government-wide level financial statements was required,

GASB Statement No. 63 provides financial guidance for reporting deferred outflows, deferred inflows of
resources, and net position in a statement of financial position and related disclosures. Deferred outflows of
resources are defined as a consumption of net assets by a government that is applicable to a future reporting
period and deferred inflows of resources are defined as an acquisition of net asseis by a government that is
applicable to afuture reporting period. Net position is defined as the residual of all other elements presented
in a statement of financial position, being measured as the difference between (a) assets and deferred
resources and (b} liabilities and deferred inflows of resources.

GASB Statement No. 65 establishes accounting and financial reporting that reclassify, as deferred outflows
of resources or deferred inflows of resources, certain items that were previously reported as assets and
liabilities. This statement also provides other financial reporting guidance related to the impact of the
financial statement elements deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources, such as
changes in the determination of the major fund calculations and limiting the use of the term “deferred” in
financial statement presentations.
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D. FUND ACCOUNTING

The City reports the following major governmental funds:

1.

2,

The General Fund — The general fund is the Cify's primary operating fund. It accounts for
all financial resources except those required to be accounted for in another fund.

The Economic Development Corporation Fund —This fund is a special revenue fund to
account for the %2 cent sales and use tax for economic and industrial development. Since the
sales and use tfax is approved specifically for such expenditures, the EDC fund is considered a
Special Revenue Fund.

The City reports the following major enterprise fund(s):

1.

The Public Utilities Department — This fund’s function is to provide for a source of supply
of water, its purification and distribution to customers and to collect and treat wastewater for
municipal customers and administer a private franchised solid waste collection and
transportation service.

Additionally, the City reports the following tfund type(s):

Governmental Funds:

1.

4,

5.

Special Revenue Funds — The City accounts for resources restricted to, or designated for,
specitic purposes by the City or a grantor in a special revenue fund. Most Federal and some
State financial assistance is accounted for in a Special Revenue Fund, and sometimes unused
balances must be returned to the grantor at the close of specified project periods.

Permanent Funds — The City accounts for donations for which the donor has stipulated that
the principal may not be expended and where the income inay only be used for purposes that
support the City's programs. The City has no Permanent Funds.

Water Projects Fund — This fund is a capital projects fund. It is used to account for the
proceeds from long-term debt financing and revenues and expenditures related to authorized
construction and other capital asset acquisitions.

Capital Projects Fund — This fund is a capital projects fund. It is used to account for the
proceeds from long-term debt financing and revenues and expendiiures related to authorized
construction and other capital asset acquisitions.

Debt Service Funds — The City accounts for resources accumulated and payments made for
principal and interest on long-term general obligation debt of governmental funds in a debt
service fund.

Proprietary Funds;

4,

Enterprise Funds — The City's activities for which outside users are charged a fee roughly
equal to the cost of providing the goods or services of those activities are accounted for in an
enterprise fund. The City's onty Enterprise Fund(s) is the Public Utilities Department.

Internal Service Funds -~ Revenues and expenses related to services provided to

organizations inside the City on a cost reimbursement basis are accounted for in an internal
service fund. The City has no internal service funds.
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Fiduciary Funds:

6.

Private Purpose Trust Funds — The City accounts for donations for which the denor has
stipulated that both the principal and the income may be used for purposes that benefit parties
outside the City. The City has no Private Purpose Trust Funds.

Agency Funds — The City accounts for resources held for others in a custodial capacity in
agency funds. The City has no Agency Funds.

E. OTHER ACCOUNTING POLICIES

1.

For purposes of the staterment of cash flows for proprietary funds, the City considers highly
liquid investments to be cash equivalents if they have a maturity of three months or less when
purchased.

In the government-wide financial statements, and proprietary fund types in the fund financial
statements, long-term debt and other long-term obligations are reported as liabilities in the
applicable governmental activitics, business-type activities, or proprietary fund type statement
of net assets. Bond premiums and discounts, as well as issuance costs, are deferred and
amortized over the life of the bonds using the effective interest method. Bonds payable are
reported net of the applicable bond premium or discount. Bond issuance costs are reporied as
deferred charges and amortized over the term of the related debt.

in the fund financial statements, governmental fund types recognize bond premiums and
discounts, as well as bond issuance costs, during the current period. The face amount of debt
issued is reported as other financing sources. Premiums received on debt issuances are
reported as other financing sources while discounts on debt issuances are reported as other
financing uses. Issuance costs, whether or not withheld from the actual debt proceeds received,
are reported as debt service expenditures.

It is the City's policy to permil some employees to accumulate earned but unused vacation and
sick pay benefits. There is a liability for unpaid accumulated vacation leave since the City
does have a policy to pay any amounts when employees separate from service with the City,
All vacation pay is accrued when incurred in the government-wide, proprietary, and fiduciary
fund financial statements. A liability for these amounts is reported in governmental funds
only if they have matured, for examnple, as a result of employee resignations and retirements.

Capital assets, which include land, buildings, furniture and equipment [and infrastructure
assets] are reported in the applicable governmental or business-type activities columns in the
government-wide financial statements. Capital assets are defined by the City as assets with an
initial, individual cost of more than $5,000 and an estimated useful life in excess of two years.
Such assets are recorded at historical cost or estimated historical cost if purchased or
constructed. Donated capital assets are recorded at estimated fair market value at the date of
donation.

The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or
materially extend assets lives are not capitalized. Major outlays for capital assets and
improvements are capitalized as projects are constructed.

Buildings, furniture and equipment of the City are depreciated using the straight line method
over the following estimated useful lives. The estimated lives rage from 3 to 15 years for
equipment, 2 to 15 years for vehicles, 30 years for infrastructure, 20 years for improvements,
and 50 years for buildings.
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Restricted Assets-Certain proceeds of enterprise fund revenue bonds, as well as certain resources
set aside for their repayment, are classified as restricted assets on the balance sheet because their
use is limited by applicable bond covenants.

Deferred revenues are those for which asset recognition criteria have been met, but for which
revenue recognition criteria have not been met. Monies collected in advance from federal or state
agencies are recorded as revenue in the year for which the expenditures are incurred.

When the City incurs an expense for which it may use either restricted or unrestricted assets, it
uses the restricted assets first whenever they will have to be returned if they are not used.

Encumbrances-The City of Rie Grande City, Texas, employs encumbrance accounting; under
which purchase order, confracts, and other commitments for the expendifure of monies are
recorded in order to reserve that portion of the applicable appropriation.

The City adopted GASB 54 as part of its 2010-11 fiscal year reporting. Tmplementation of
GASB 54 is required for all cities for their fiscal year ending 2012. The intention of GASB 54 is
to provide a more structured classification of fund balance and to improve the usefuliess of fund
balance reporting to the users of the City’s financial statements. The reporting standard
establishes a hierarchy for fund balance classifications and the constraints imposed on the
uses of those resources. GASB 54 provides for two major types of fund batances, which are
nonspendable and spendable.

Nonspendable fund balances are balances that cannot be spent because they are not expected to
be converted to cash or they are legally or contractually required fo remain intact. Examples of
these classifications are prepaid items and inventories.

n addition to the nonspendable fund balance, GASB 54 has provided a hierarchy of spendable
fund balances, based on hierarchy of spending constraints.

» Restricted: fund balances that are constrained by external parties, constitutional
provisions, or enabling legistation.

o  Committed: fund balances that contain self-imposed consiraints of the government
forin its highest level of decision making authority. The responsibility fo commit
funds rests with the City Commissioners. Committed amounts cannot be used for
any other purpose unless the governing board removes those constraints by taking
the same type of formal action.

e  Assigned: fund balances that contain self~imposed constraints of the government to
be used for a particular purpose.

¢  Unassigned: fund balance of the general find that is not constrained for any
particular purpose.

When the City incurs an expense for which it may use either restricted or unrestricted assets, it used
the restricted assets first whenever they will have fo be returned if they are not used.
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II. STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE, AND ACCOUNTABILITY

A, BUDGETARY DATA

The City Council adopts an "appropriated budget” for the General Fund and the Economic Development
Corporation (EDC) Special Revenue Fund, In accordance with Government Accounting Standards Board
(GASB) Statement#34, a City is required to present the adopted and final amended budgeted revenues and
expenditures for the General Fund. The City compares the final amended budget to actual revenues and

expenditures. Budget information appears in Exhibits E-1 and E-2.

The following procedures are followed in establishing the budgetary data reflected in the general-purpose

financial statements;

1. Prior to October 1, the City prepares a budget for the next succeeding fiscal year beginning
October 1. The operating budget includes proposed expenditures and the means of financing

them.

2. A meeting of the City Council is then called for the purpose of adopting the proposed budget. At

least ten days' public notice of the meeting must be given.

3. Prior to October I, the budget is legally enacted through passage of an ordinance by the
Council. Once a budget is approved, it can only be formally amended by approval of a
majority of the members of the Council. Amendments are presented to the Council at its
regutar meetings. Each amendment must have Council approval. As required by law, such
amendments are inade before the fact, and are reflected in the official minutes of the Council, and

are not made after fiscal year end, No budget amendments occurred in 2013,

4. Budgeted amounts are as amended by the Council. All budget appropriations lapse at year
end.

B. EXCESS OF EXPENDITURES OVYER APPROPRIATIONS

General Fund expenditures exceeded appropriations by the amount(s) noted below;

Functional Category Amount
General Government $ (364,360)
Judicial (2,436)
Public Safety (166,146)
Library (2,872)

IH. DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS AND ACCOUNT GROUPS

A. DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS :

The funds of the City must be deposited and invested under the terms of a contract, contents of which
are set out in the Depository Contract Law. The depository bank places approved pledged
securities for safekeeping and trust with the City's agent bank in an amount sufficient to protect City
funds on a day-to- day basis during the period of the contract. The pledge of approved securities is
waived only to the extent of the depository bank's dollar amount of Federal Deposit Insurance
Corporation ("FDIC") insurance.

At September 30, 2014, the carrying amount of the City's deposits (cash and interest-bearing
savings accounts included in temporary investments) was $ 9,260,331 and the bank balance was
$9.641,414. The City's cash deposits at September 30, 2014 and during the year ended September
30, 2014 were entirely covered by FDIC insurance or by pledged collateral held by the City's agent
bank in the City's name.
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The Public Punds Investment Act (Government Code Chapter 2256} contains specific provisions
in the areas of investment practices, management reports and establishment of appropriate policies.
Among other things, it requires the City to adopt, implement, and publicize an investment policy.
That policy must address the following areas: (1) safety of principal and liquidity, (2) portfolio
diversification, (3) allowable investments, (4) acceptable risk levels, (5) expected rates of return, (6)
maximum allowable stated maturity of portfolio investments, (7) maximum average dollar-weighted
maturity allowed based on the stated maturity date for the portfolio, (8) investment staff quality and
capabilities, (9) and bid solicitation preferences for certificates of deposit. Statutes authorize the City
to invest in (1) obligations of the U.S. Treaswry, certain U.S. agencies, and the State of Texas; (2)
certificates of deposit, (3) certain municipal securities, (4) money market savings accounts, (5)
repurchase agreements, (6) bankers acceptances, (7) Mutual Funds, (8) Investment pools, (9)
guarantead investment contracts, {10} and common trust funds.

The Act also requires the City to have independent auditors perform test procedures related fo
investment practices as provided by the Act. The City is in substantial compliance with the
requirements of the Act and with local policies.

As of September 30, 2014, the City had the following investments;

Investment Maturities (in years)

Fair Less More

Investmient Type Yalue than 1 1-5 6-10 than 10
General Fund:

Tex-Pool $ 65 $ 65

Logic Money Market 264,824 264,824
Total-General Fund 264,889 264,889 -
Special Revenues Funds:

Logic Money Market 1,482,525 1,482,525
Total-Special Revenue Fund 1,482,525 1,482,525 -
Capital Projects Funds:

LogicMoney Market 39,838 39,838
Total-Capital Projects Funds 39,838 39,838 -
Subtotal-Governmental Type 1,787,252 1,787,252 -
Enterprise Fund:

Texpool Money Market 759 759

Bank of New York Money Market 284,366 284,366

Logic Money Market 520,283 520,283
Total-Enterprise Fund 805,408 805,408 -
Subtotai-Proprietary Type 805,408 805,408 -
Total-All Fund Types $ 2,592,660 $ 2,592,660 $ - $
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Credit Risk To limit the risk that an issuer or other counterparty to an investment will not fulfill its
obligations the City limits investments to Certificates of Deposits, Public Funds Investment Pools and
Guaranteed Investinent Contracts, collateralized by U.S. Government Securities. As of September 30,
2014, the city's investments were secured by U.S. Government Securities,

Custodial Credit Risk for Investments State law requires governmental entities to contract with financial
institutions in which funds will be deposited to secure those deposits with insurance or pledged securitics
with a fair value equaling or exceeding the amount on deposit at the end of each business day. The pledged
securities must be in the name of the governmental entity and held by the entity or its agent. Since the city
complies with this law, it has no custodial credit risk for deposits.

Concentration of Credit Risk To limit the risk of loss attributed to the magnitude of a government's
investment in a single issuer, the investment portfolio shall be diversified in terms of investment instraments
maturity scheduling, and financial institutions. To further limit the risk all of the City investments are
collateralized by U.S. Governiment Securities.

Interest Rate Risk To limit the risk that changes in interest rafes will adversely affect the fair value of
investments, the City requires that the investments shall be monitored by using specific identification.

B. PROPERTY TAXES

Property taxes are levied by October 1 on the assessed vatue listed as of the prior January 1 for all real and
business personal property located in the City in conformity with Subtitle E, Texas Property Tax Code.
Taxes are due on receipt of the tax bill and are delinquent if not paid before February lof the year
following the year in which fmposed. On January 31 of cach year, a tax lien attaches to property to secure
the payment of all taxes, penalties, and interest ultimately imposed. Property tax revenues are considered
avaitable (1) when they become due or past due and receivable within the current period and (2) when they
are expected to be collected during a 60-day period after the close of the fiscal year.

C. DELINQUENT TAXES RECEIVABLE

Allowances for uncollectible tax receivables within the General Fund are based on historical experience in
collecting property taxes, Uncollectible personal property taxes are periodically reviewed and written off,
but the City is prohibited from writing off real property taxes without specific statutory authority from the
Texas Legislature,

D. INTERFUND BALANCES

Balances due to and due from other funds at September 30, 2014 consisted of the following:

Due From Fund Due To Fund Amount Purpose
General Fund Special Revenue Funds $ 189,578 [Short-term loans
Special Revenue Funds General Fund 508 |Shori-term loans
Special Revenue Funds Special Revenue Funds 57,577 |Short-term loans
Capital Projects Fund General Fund - |Short-term loans

Total $ 247,663
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The outstanding balances between funds result mainly from time lag between the date that (1) interfund
goods and services are provided or reimbursable expenditures occur, (2) transactions are recorded in the
accounting system, and (3) payments between funds are made. All amounts due are scheduled to be repaid

within one year.

Transfers to and from other funds during the year ended September 30, 2614 consisted of the following:

Transfers From Transfers To Amount Reason
Public Utility Fund General Fund $ 499,640 {Supplemental other funds sources
Public Utility Fund Debt Service Fund 637,500 1Supplemental other funds sources
Public Utility Fund Capital Projects Fund 105,000 {Supplemental other funds sources
Public Utility Fund Special Revenues Funds 1,194 |Supplemental other funds sources
Special Revenue Funds General Fund 252,950 |Supplemental other fiinds sources
Special Revenue Funds Special Revenues Funds 50,495 {Supplemental other funds sources
Total $ 1,546,779

E. CAPITAL ASSET ACTIVITY

Capital asset activity for the City for the year ended September 30, 2014, was as follows:

Primary Government

Governmental Activities:
Land
Buildings
Furniture and Equipment
Infrastructure
Construction in Progress
Totals at Historic Cost
Less Accumulated Depreciation:
Total Accumulated Depreciation
Governmental Activities Capital Assets, Net

Business-type Activities:
Land
Buildings and Improvements
Furniture and Equipment
Infrastructure
Totals at Historic Cost
Less Accumulated Depreciation:
Total Accumulated Depreciation
Business-type Activities Capital Assets, Net

Beginning Retirements Ending
Balance Additions & Adjustments Balance
[,075865  § - 8 - 1,075,865
3,427,861 - - 3,427,861
3,881,475 823,502 - 4,704,977
5,812,656 6,940,273 - 12,752,929
5,679,904 - 5,679,904 -
19,877,761 7,763,775 5,679,904 21,961,632
(7,977,958) (514,577) - {8,492,535)
11,899,803 § 7,249,198  § 5,679,904 13,469,097
339,035 § - § - 339,035
1,583,800 8,223 - 1,592,023
525,041 126,847 - 651,888
34,037,080 - - 34,037,080
36,484,956 135,070 - 36,620,026
{4,708,134) (638,239) (5,346,373)
31,776,822 3 (503,169) % - 31,273,653

30




Depreciation expense was charged to governmental functions as follows:y

General Governmen{ $ 205,347
Judicial 6,729
Public Safety 188,796
Public Works 35,326
Economic Development 35,277
Conservation & Development 15,069
Culture & Recreation 15,277
Libraries 12,756
Total Depreciation Expense $ 514,577
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F. BONDS AND OTHER LONG-TERM PAYABLES
At September 30, 2014, long-term debt consisted of the following:

General Long Term Debt:

Capital Project Bonds Payable:

$6,500,000 Combination Tax & Limited Pledge Revenue Certificates of Obligation

due in annual installments ranging from $190,000 to $510,000

from 03-15-11 through 2030; interest estimated at 5.34% $

$1,930,000 Combination Tax & Revenue Certificates of Obligation
due in annual installments ranging from $70,000 to $145,000
from 02-15-14 through 2033; interest estimated at .67% to 5.29% §

Subtotal- Bonds Payable $

Capital lease obligations payable at September 30, 2014 are as follows:

Capital lease payable to Scheriz Bank & Trust dated 12-15-13, $
payable in 84 monthty installments of $747 including interest

at 3.92%, sccured by (1) Crack Filler Machine; Crginal Amt $54,830.60

Capital lease payable to Kansas State Bank dated 12-20-13,
payable in 7 annual installments of $44,959 including interest
at 3.19%, secured by (2} Dump Trucks and (1) Backhoe; Original Amt $286,986.04 $

Capital lease payable to Kansas State Bank dated 01-27-14,
payable in 14annual installments of $43,867 including interest
at 2.98%, secured by COPSync Hardware/Software; Original At $167,996.30 $

Capital lease payable to Kansas State Bank dated 07-10-12,
payable in 7 annual installments of $29,284 including interest
at 3.098%, secured by (1) TYMCO Street Sweeper $

Subtotal-Capital Lease Payable $

Notes Payable:
Note payable to Lone Star National Bank dated 2/04/08, payable in 35 monthly

payments of $2,190 including interest of 6.00%, with remaining balance due at
maturity, secured by real estate

Note payable to Lone Star National Bank dated 2/04/08, payable in 35 monthly

payments of $2,276 including interest of 6.00%, with remaining balance due at
maturity, secured by real estate

Subtotal-Notes Payable g
Total General Long Term Debt 3
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5,495,000

1,860,000

7,355,000

49,063

242,027

124,130

108,598

523,818

22,031

165,724

191,755

8,070,573




Enterprise Long Term Debt:
Revenue Bonds Payable:

$2,885,000 2007 A Combination Tax and Revenue Certificates of Obligation
due in annual instaltments ranging from $140,000
to $145,000 from 02-15-11 through 2030; interest at 0.0%

$12,200,000 20078 Combination Tax and Revenue Certificates of Obligation
due in annual installments ranging from $100,000
to $430,000 from 02-15-11 through 2040; interest at 0.0%

$8,700,000 2007C Combination Tax and Revenue Certificates of Obligation
due in annual installments ranging from $145,000
to $545,000 from 02-15-11 through 2040; interest 2.5% to 5.25%

$173,000 1996 Waterworks and Sewer System Revenue Serial Bonds
due in annual installments ranging from $5,000 to
$15,000 from 07-10-02 through 20 16; interest at 5.69% to 6.74%

$811,000 1996 A Waterworks and Sewer System Revenue Serial Bonds
due in annual installments ranging from $8,000 to
$46,000 from 07-10-02 through 20335; interest at 5.125%

Subtotal- Revenue Bonds Payable

Capital Leases:

Capital lease payable to Schertz Bank dated 04-03-13,
payable in 84 monthly installments of $2,738.71 including interest
at 2.69%, secured by a sewer cleaning truck

Subtotal- Capital Leases Payable
Total Enterprise Long Term Debt
Total Long-Term Debt

$2,320,000
11,645,000 |
7,250,000
29,000

617,000

$21,261,000

165,442

$165,442

$21,426,442

$29,497,017

There are a number of limitations and restrictions contained in the revenue bond indenture. Management has
indicated that the City is in compliance with all significant limitations and restrictions at September 30, 2014.
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G. DEBT SERVICE REQUIREMENTS

Debt service requirements for long-terin debt are as follows:

Year Ending Capital Leases Note Payable Bonds Payable
September 30 Principal Interest Principal Interest Principal Interest
2015 139,189 20,755 49,344 2,961 1,121,000 698,659
2016 143,448 16,497 27,312 1,639 1,108,000 681,432
2017 147,032 12,913 27,312 1,639 1,124,000 664,638
2018 106,863 9,216 27312 1,639 1,135,000 646,641
2019 50,613 8,937 60,477 3,629 1,156,000 627,546
2020-2024 102,118 - - - 6,146,000 2,743,544
2025-2029 - - - - 6,940,000 1,981,839
20390-2034 - - - - 5,255,000 1,099,710
2035-2039 - - - - 4,216,000 461,638
2040-2044 - - - - 415,000 14,407
Total § 689263 $ 68318 $§ 191,757 § 11,507 | $ 28616000 $ 9,620,054
H. CHANGES IN LONG-TERM LIABILITIES
Long-term activity for the year ended September 30, 2014, was as follows:
Beginning Ending Due Within
Balance Additions Reductions Balance One Year
Governmental Activities:
Bonds and Other Payable:
Capital Leases $ 145311 § 509313 3 131,307 $ 523,817 $ 110,500
Bonds Payable 6,374,398 1,930,000 949,398 7,355,000 335,000
Notes Payable 233,955 - 42,199 191,756 49,343
Total Bonds and Other Payables 6,753,664 2439,813 1,122,904 8,070,573 494,843
Total Governmental Activities Long-term
Liabilities 6,753,664 2,439,813 1,122,904 8,070,573
Business-type Activities:
Bonds and Other Payable:
Capital Leases 229,618 - 64,176 165,442 28,689
Revenue Bonds Payable 22,020,000 - 759,000 21,261,000 740,000
Total Bonds and Other Payable $ 22249618 % - %3 83,176 § 21426442  § 768,689

I.  DEFERRED REVENUE (UNAVAILABLE REVENUE)
Deferred revenue at year-end represents amounts itot available in the current reporting period, Items include
uncollected property taxes, and other funds set aside for future years,

J. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES
The City is involved in various lawsuits concerning several issues. The city’s management and legal

counsel estimate that the potential loss for a number of the cases is minimal, either in the potential for an
unfavorable outcome or the potential loss in the event of loss. In addition the City’s legal counsel is unable
to reasonably predict the outcome in favor of or against the City at this time for all the outstanding cases,
and is not able to estiinate a range of potential loss for all the cases.

Federal and State Funds -The City has received federal and state funds as grants and other financial
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assistance. These funds must be spent only as allowed by the grant and other federal or state requirements.
Also, the City inust follow various laws and regulations when they receive these funds. If the City does not
abide by these laws and regulations or does not spend the monies, as allowed under the grant agreements,
the City may be required fo return the grant monies, or portion thereof, to the granting agencies. The
contingent liability, if any, that may be due to the federal and state agencies, canmot be readily determined.

K. RISK MANAGEMENT

The City is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts, theft, damage, or destruction of assets, errors
and omissions, injuries to employees, and natural disasters. During fiscal year 2009, the city has maintained
general liability coverage at a cost that is considered fo be economically justifiable by joining together with
other governmental entities in the State as a member of the Texas Municipal League Intergovernmental Risk
Pool (“TML”). TML is a self-funded pool operating as a common risk management and insurance program,
The City pays an annual premium to TML for its insurance coverage. The agrecement for the formation of
TML provides that TML will be self-sustaining through member premiums and will reinsure through
commercial companies for claims in excess of acceptable risk levels; however each category of coverage
has its own level of reinsurance, The City continues to carry commercial insurance for other risks of loss.
There were no significant reductions in commercial insurance coverage in the past fiscal year and settled
claims resulting fiom these risks have not exceeded coverage in any of the past three years.

L. CONCENTRATIONS OF CREDIT RISK

Proprietary fund accounts receivable are concentrated within the geographic service area of the utility
system, which is within the City. Those receivables are not concentrated within any individually significant
customers. The City requires a deposit from cach utility customer prior to establishing service. The net
amount of proprietary fund accounts receivable at year end after deducting the allowance for doubtful
accounts and after including estimated amounts for service provided but not yet billed at year end was
$806,042. Utility customer deposits held af year end totaled $ 331,628,

M. HEALTH CARE COVERAGE

During the year ended September 30, 2014, employees of the City were covered by a health insurance plan
(the “Plan™}. The City paid premiums of $280.86 per month per employee to the Plan. Employees, at their
option, authorized payroll withholdings to pay premiums for dependents. All premiums were paid to a
licensed insurer. The Plan was authorized by Article 3.51-2, Texas Insurance Code and was documented
by contractual agreement.

The contract between the City and the licensed insurer is renewable March {, 2015, and terms of coverage
and premium costs are included in the contractual provisions.

Latest financial statements for the insurer (Texas municipal League Employee Benefits Pool} are available

for the year ended December 31, 2014 and have been filed with the Texas Board of Insurance in Austin,
Texas, and are public records.
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N. DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN

Plan Description

The City provides pension benefits for all of its eligible employees through a non-traditional, joint contributory,
hybrid defined benefit plan in the state-wide Texas Municipal Retivement System (TMRS), an agent multiple-
employer public employee retirement system. The plan provisions that have been adopted by the City are
within the options available in the governing state statutes of TMRS.

TMRS issues a publicly available comprehensive annual financial report that includes financial statements and
required supplementary information (RSIy for TMRS; the report also provides detailed explanations of the
contributions, benefits and actuarial methods and assumptions used by the System. This report may be
obtained by writing to TMRS, P.O. Box 149153, Austin, TX 78714-9153 or by calling 800-924-8677; in
addition, the report is available on TMRS’ website at www.TMRS.com.

The plan provisions are adopted by the governing body of the City, within the options available in the state
statutes governing TMRS. Plan provisions for the City were as follows:

Plan Year 2014 Plan Year 2013
Employee Deposit rate 6% 6%
Muatching ratio (city to employee) i.5t01 15101
Years required for vesting 5 5
Service retirement eligibility: ' 60/5, 0/20 60/5, 0120
(expressed as age / years of service)
Updated Service Credit 100% Repeating Transfers | 100% Repeating Transfers
Annuity Increase (to retirees) 70% of CPI Repeating 70% of CPI Repeating

Contributions

Under the state law governing TMRS, the contribution rate for each City is determined annually by the actuary,
using the Projected Unit Credit actuarial cost method, This rate consists of the normal cost contribution rate and
the prior service cost contribution rate, which is calculated to be a level percent of payroll from year fo year.
The normal cost contribution rate finances the portion of an active member’s projected benefit allocated
annually; the prior service contribution rate amortizes the unfunded (overfunded) actuarial liability (asset) over
the applicable period for that City. Both the normal cost and prior service contribution rates inchude recognition
of the projected impact of annually repeating benefits, such as Updated Service Credits and Annuity Increases.

The City contributes to the TMRS Plan at an actuarially determined rate. Both the employees and the City
make contributions monthly. Since the City needs fo know its contribution rate in advance for budgetary
purposes, there is a one-year delay between the actuarial valuation that serves as the basis for the rate and the
calendar year when the rate goes into effect.

The annual pension cost and net pension obligation/ (asset) are as follows;

1. Annual Required Contribution (ARC) $ 369,157
2. laterest on Net Pension Obligation -
3. Adjustment to the ARC -
4. Annual Pension Cost (APC) 369,157
5. Contributions Made (325,993)
6. Increase (decrease) in net pension obligation 43,164
7. Net Pension Obligation/(Asset), beginning of year -
8. Net Pension Obligation/(Asset), end of year $ 43,164
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Three Year Trend Information

Fiscal Year Actual Annual Percentage Net
Funding Contribution Pension of APC Pension
September 30, Made Cost (APCY Contributed Obligation
2011 $ 333,598 § 33,598 100% § -
2012 322,069 322,069 100% -
2013 325,993 369,157 100% -

The required contribution rates for fiscal year 2013 were determined as part of the December 31, 2011 and
2012 actuarial valuations. Additional information as of the latest actuarial valuation, December 31, 2013, also

follows:

Valuation Date 12/31/2011 12/31/2012 1273172013
Actuarial Cost Method Projected Unit Projected Unit Projected Unit
Credit Credit Credit

Amortization Method

Level Percent

Level Percent

Level Percent

of Payroll of Payroll of Payroll
GASB 25 Equivatent Single 26.3 years; 252 years; 25.2 years;
Amortization Period Closed Period Closed Period Closed Period
Amortization Period for new 30 years 30 years 30 years

Gains/Losses

Asset Valuation Method

10-year smoothed

10-year smoothed

10-year smoothed

market market market
Actuarial Assumptions:
Investment Rate of Return 7.00% 7.00% 7.00%
Projected Salary Increases Varies by Varies by Varies by

Includes inflation at

Cost of Living Adjustments

age and service
3.00%

2.10%
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Actuarial UAAl asa
Actuarial | Actuarial Accrued Unfunded Percentage
Valuation | Value of Liability AAL Covered of Covered
Date Agsets {AAL) Funded Ratio (UAAL) Payroll Payroll
(1 €3] 3) “4) (5 (6)
(HI2) @)D @5
12/31/2013 | $4,971,520 | $7,178,656 69.3% $2,207,136 | $4,471,275 49.4%

Actual valuations involve estimates of the value of reporfed amounts and assumptions about the
probability of events far into the future, Actuarially determined amounts are subject to continual revision
as actual results are  compared to past expectations and new estimates are made about the future.

Actuarial calculations are based on the benefits provided under the terms of the substantive plan in effect
at the time of each valuation, and reflect a long-term perspective. Consistent with that perspective,
actuarial methods and assumptions used include techniques that are designed to reduce short — term
volatility in actuarial accrued [abilitics and the actuarial value of assets. The schedule of funding
progress, presented as Required Supplementary Information following the notes to the financial
statements, presents multi-year trend information about whether the actuarial value of plan assets is
increasing or decreasing over time relative to the  actuarial accrued liability of benefits.

Actuarial UAALasa
Actuarial | Actuarial Accrued Unfanded Percentage
Valuation | Value of Liability AAL Covered of Covered
Date Assets (AAL) Funded Ratio (UAAL) Payroll Payroll
(1) (2} 3) ) (5} (6)
(O 2)-(1) (4)(s)
12/31/2011 | $3,431,264 | $5,132,327 66.9% $1,701,063 | $3,932,136 43.3%
12/31/2012 | $4,416,433 | 85,754,747 76.7% $1,338,314 | $4,147,522 32.3%
12/31/2013 | $4,971,520 | $7,178,656 69.3% $2,207,136 | $4,471,275 49.4%

0. OTHERPOST EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS - TEXAS MUNICIPAL
RETIREMENT SYSTEM —SUPPLEMENTAL DEATH BENEFITS

The city also participates in the cost sharing multiple-employer defined benefit group-term life
insurance plan operated by the Texas Municipal Refirement System (TMRS) known as the
Supplemental Death Benefits Fund (SDBF). The city elected, by ordinance, to provide group-term
life insurance coverage to current and retired employees. The city may terminate coverage under
and discontinue participation in the SDBF by adopting an ordinance before November 1 of any
year to be effective the following January 1.

The death benefit for active employees provides a lump-sum payment approximately equal to
the employee’s annual salary (calculated based on the employee’s actual earnings, for the 12-
month period preceding the month of death); retired employees are insured for $7,500; this
coverage is an “other postemployment benefit,” or OPEB,

Your city oftfers supplemental death to: Plan Year 2013 Plan Year 2014
Active employees (yes or no) Yes Yes
Retirees (yes or no) Yes Yes

The city contributes to the SDBF at a contractually required rate as determined by an annual
actuarial valuation. The rate is equal to the cost of providing one-year term life insurance. The
funding policy for the SDBF program is fo assure that adequate resources are available to meet
all death benefii payments for the upcoming year; the intent is not to pre~-fund retiree term life
insurance during employees® entire careers. The city’s contributions to the TMRS SDBF for the
years ended 2013, 2012 and 2011 were $2,015, $2,015 and $2,045, respectively, which equaled
the required contributions each year.

P. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

The City has evaluated subsequent events through January 13, 2016, the date which the financial statements were available

to be issued.
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CITY OF RIO GRANDE CITY, TEXAS EXHIBIT B-1
GENERAL FUND Page 1 0f 3
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2014

Variance with

Final Budget
Budgeted Amounts Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative)
REVENUE:
Taxes:
General Properly Taxes $ 2369619 $ 2,369,619 $ 2,890,002 $ 520,383
General Sales and Use Taxes 1,824,585 1,824,585 2,839,440 1,014,855
Beverage Taxes 7,500 7,500 8,503 1,003
Other Taxes - Franchise Taxes 552,860 552,860 648,972 96,112
Penally and Interest on Deliquent Taxes 58,448 58,448 61,525 3,077
License and Permits 84,400 84,400 75,849 (8,551)
Intergovernmental 82,000 82,000 241,232 159,232
Charges for Services 140,000 140,000 108,300 (31,700)
Fines and Forfeitures 139,870 139,870 150,692 10,822
Investment Earnings 1,000 1,000 1,405 4056
Rents and Royalties 30,000 30,000 23,045 (6,955)
Miscellaneous Revenues 17,500 20,000 69,092 49,092
Total revenues 5,307,782 5,310,282 7,118,057 1,807,775
EXPENDITURES:
General Government
Mayor and Council
Suppflies 50 50 14 36
Other Services and Charges 14,700 10,550 11,558 {1,008)
Total Mayor and Council 14,750 10,600 11,572 {972)
Administration
Personal Services 50,215 50,915 57,130 (6,215)
Supplies 18,000 26,213 24 875 1,338
Other Services and Charges 514,400 482,926 827,659 (344,733)
Capital Qutlay 2,000 9,697 8,550 1,147
Total Administration 585,315 569,751 918,214 (348,463)
City Secretary
Personal Services 61,589 62,589 63,701 {1,202)
Supplies 6,000 - - -
Other Services and Charges 18,000 10,250 9,983 267
Total City Secrrelary 85,589 72,839 73,774 (935)
Finance
Personal Services 160,609 164,264 170,157 {5,893)
Supplies 700 3,660 2,961 699
Other Services and Charges 6,825 6,855 8,931 (2.0786)
Capital Outlay -- 2,865 -- 2,865
Total Finance 168,134 177,644 182,049 {4,405)
Personnel
Personal Services 47,981 48,822 52,076 (3,254}
Supplies - - 842 (842)
Other Services and Charges 7,460 0,982 8,222 1,760
Capital Oullay - 1,040 - 1,040
Total Personnel 55,441 59,844 61,140 (1,296)
City Manager
Personal Services 184,549 186,324 194,613 (8,289)
Total City Manager 184,549 186,324 194,613 (8,289)
Total General Governmemt 1,083,778 1,077,002 1,441,362 (364,360)
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CITY OF RIO GRANDE CITY, TEXAS

GENERAL FUND

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2014

Judicial
Municipal Court
Personal Services
Supplies
Other Services and Charges
Total Municipal Court
Total Judicial
Public Safety
Police Department
Personal Services
Supplies
Other Services and Charges
Capital Outlay
Total Police Department
Fire Department
Personal Services
Supplies
Qther Services and Charges
Capital Outlay
Total Fire Department
Total Public Safety
Highways and Streets
Other Services and Charges
Total Highways and Sireets
Public Woiks
Personal Services
Supplies
Other Services and Charges

Capital Outlay
Total Public Works

Culture, Recreation & Parks
Parks Department
Personal Services
Supplies
Other Services and Charges
Capital Outlay
Total Parks Departmeni

Total Culture, Recreation & Parks

Library
Personal Services
Supplies
Other Services and Charges
Capital Outlay
Total Library
Conservation and Development
Personal Services
Supplies
Other Services and Charges
Capital Outlay

Total Conservation and Development!

EXHIBIT B-1
Page 2 0f 3

Variance with

Final Budget
Budgeted Amounis Positive
Qriginal Final Actual {Negative)
58,683 59,423 61,048 {1,625)
8,000 6,731 6,608 123
66,850 68,337 69,271 {934)
133,533 134,491 136,927 {2,436)
133,533 134,491 136,927 {2,436)
1,601,425 1,644,225 1,689,699 (45,474)
137,063 131,615 145,185 {13,580)
128,576 152,999 138,550 14,449
1,000 1,000 -- 1,000
1,868,064 1,929,839 1,973,444 (43,605)
777,355 796,977 856,467 (59,480)
34,250 34,617 36,877 {2,280)
92,575 73,610 58,311 15,299
28,000 28,718 104,808 (76,080)
932,180 933,922 1,056,463 (122,541)
2,800,244 2,863,761 3,029,907 {166,146)
126,500 126,500 182,206 {(55,708)
126,500 126,500 182,206 {(55,706)
443,882 463,364 468,509 (5,145)
99,800 101,322 103,415 (2,093)
58,796 74,700 68,162 6,538
155,840 378,787 339,828 38,959
s T 1,018,173 979,914 38,298
152,122 148,172 123,345 24,827
29,500 23,200 16,328 6,872
210,800 216,650 177,141 39,509
3,000 7,400 - 7,400
395,422 395,422 316,814 78,608
395,422 395,422 316,814 78,608
141,109 135,805 141,042 {5,237)
5,050 5,433 4,565 868
45,187 54,550 83,424 (28,874)
41,200 38,608 8,237 30,371
232,546 234,396 237,268 (2,872)
190,476 257,338 192,235 65,103
18,000 20,585 25,472 {4,887)
30,750 42,193 48,420 (6,227)
10,000 60,000 50,768 9,232
249,228 380,116 316,895 63,221
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CITY OF RIO GRANDE CITY, TEXAS
GENERAL FUND

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2014

Debt Service:
Principal
Interest and Fiscal Charges
Total Expenditures
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over (Under) Expenditures

OTHER FINANCING SCURCES (USES):
Transfers In
Transfers Qut

Capital Leases
Total Other Financing Sources {Uses)

Net Change in Fund Balances

Fund Balances - Beginning
Fund Balances - Ending

EXHIBIT B-1

$

Page 3 0f3
Variance with
Final Budget
Budgeted Amounts Posilive
Original Final Actual (Negative)
119,738 150,749 150,726 23
46,759 19,639 19,023 616
5,956,064 6,400,249 6,811,042 (410,793)
(648,282) (1,089,967) 307,015 1,396,982
595,000 771,640 755,834 (15,806)
(5,200) {5,200} {3,244) (1,956)
55,000 341,817 509,813 (167,996)
(3,482) 18,290 1,569,418 1,551,128
615,182 615,182 615,182 --
611,700 $ 633472 $ 2184600 $ 1,551,128

41




CITY OF RIO GRANDE CITY, TEXAS EXHIBIT B-2
ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION FUND

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2014

Variance with
Final Budget
Budgeted Amounts Positive
Criginal Final Actual {Negative)
REVENUE:
Taxes:

General Sales and Use Taxes $ 912,292 $ 912,292 ¢ 1,436831 § 524,539
Investment Earnings 2,000 2,000 1,652 (448)
Miscellaneous Revenues 13,500 13,500 10,249 {3,251)

Total revenues 927,792 927,792 1,448,632 520,840
EXPENDITURES:
Economic Development and Assistance
Personal Services 194,098 194,898 129,128 65,770
Supplies 19,900 22,150 18,612 3,538
Other Services and Charges 1,686,600 1,673,650 672,287 1,001,263
Total Economic Development and Assistance 1,900,598 1,900,598 825,350 1,075,248
Total Expenditures 1,500,598 1,800,598 825,350 1,075,248
Excess {Deficiency) of Revenues
Over (Under) Expenditures (972,806} (972,806) 623,282 1,596,088
OTHER FINANGCING SCURCES (USES):
Transfers In 35,000 35,000 35,000 --
Transfers Out {(310,000) {310,000} (235,201) {74,799)
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) (275,000) (275,000) {200,201) (74,799)
Net Change in Fund Balances (1,247,808) (1,247,808) 423,081 1,670,887
Fund Balances - Beginning -- - 1,710,994 1,710,994
Fund Balances - Ending $ (1,247808) $_ {(1,2478068) $ 2,134,075 $_ 3,381,881
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Combining Statements and Budget Comparisons
as Supplementary Information

This supplementary information includes financial statements and schedules not required by the Governmental Accounting
Standards Board, nor a part of the basic financial statements, but are presented for purposes of additionaf analysis.




CITY OF RIOC GRANDE CITY, TEXAS
NOTES TO REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2014

BUDGETARY INFORMATION — The budget is prepared in accordance with financial policies
approved by the City Budget Officer and the City Council following a public hearing. The Budget
Officer is required by policy to present Gity Council with a balanced budget that contains a no-tax
increase assumption as a starting point for budget discussions. The amounts budgeted in a fiscal
year for expenditures in various funds may not exceed the balances in those funds as of the first
day of the fiscal year plus any anticipated revenue for the fiscal year as estimated by the City’s
management.

The following are the funds which have legally adopted annual budgets prepared on a basis
consistent with GAAP. General Fund and Special Revenue Fund-Economic Development
Corporation Fund.

The budget law of the State of Texas provides that “the amounts budgeted for current
expenditures from the various funds of the City shall not exceed the balances in said funds plus
the anticipated revenues for the current year for which the budget is made as estimated by the
City's management. In addition, law provides that the City Council may, upon proper application,
transfer an existing budget surplus during the year to a budget of like kind and fund but no such
transfer shall increase the total budget.

Each year, all departments submit to the Budget Officer requests for appropriation. These
requests are reviewed, complied and presented to the City Council for approval. The City Council
conducts departmental budget reviews, adjusts budget requests to final form and conducts a
public hearing in the City Administration Building. Once copy of the proposed budget must be
filed with the City Secretary. Copies must be available to the public. The City Council must
provide for the public hearing on the budget on some date within seven calendar days after the
filing of the budget and prior to October 1%t of the current fiscal year.

The City controls appropriations at the category level {i.e., salaries/allowances, operations and
property) for each department/project within the General Fund and some of the Special Revenue
Funds. Grants are budgeted in total and not at the category level. All Debt Service Fund
expenditures for principal and interest of long-term debt are considered to be in the operations
category. Certain appropriation transfers may be made between categories or departments only
with the approval of the City Council. Other transfers (e.g. court costs) may be authorized by the
City Manager. Transfers that were made during fiscal year 2014 did not increase the City’s overall
budget. Unencumbered funds lapse at fiscal year end. The original budgets presented in the
report are the approved budgets before amendments and transfers. The final budgets presented
in this report reflect the budgets as amended for all appropriation transfers processed during the
fiscal year. The legal level of budgetary control {the level on which expenditures may not exceed
appropriations) in on an object class basis. More comprehensive accounting of activity on the
budgetary basis is provided in a separate report, which available for public inspection in the City's
administration building.
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CITY OF RIO GRANDE CITY, TEXAS
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET

NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2014

ASSETS AND OTHER DEBITS

Assets:

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Investments

Receivables ( net of allowances for uncollectibles):
Due from Other Funds

Total Assets and Other Debils

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES:
Liabilities:
Accounts Payable
Due to Other Funds
Accrued Interest Payable
Total Liabilities

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Unavailable Revenue-Property Taxes
Total Deferred inflows of Resources

Fund Balances:
Restricted Fund Balances:
Federal or State Funds Grant Restriction
Restricted for Debt Service
Assigned
Committed
Construction
Total Fund Balance

Total Liabilities and Fund Balance

EXHIBIT C-1

Total
Nonmajor

Special Capital Governmental

Revenue Projects Funds (See

Funds Funds Exhibit A-3)
811,904 3 1,735228 & 2,547,132
- 39,838 39,838
358,469 15,168 373,637
508 - 508
1,170,881 $ 1,790,234 $ 2,961,115
13635 & 18,480 $ 32,115
246,146 200 246,346
70,035 - 70,035
328,816 18,680 348,496
80,232 -- 80,232
80,232 - 80,232
375,860 - 375,860
88,416 - 88,416
296,557 -- 296,557
- 1,771,554 1,771,554
760,833 1,771,554 2,532,387
1,170,881 $ 1,790,234  § 2,961,115
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CITY OF RIO GRANDE CITY, TEXAS

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,

AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2014

Revenue:
Taxes:

General Property Taxes

Other Taxes - Franchise Taxes
Intergovernmaental
Charges for Services
Fines and Forfeitures
Investment Earnings
Miscellaneous Revenues

Total revenues

Expenditures:
Current:
General Governmen!
Public Safety
Economic Development and Assistance
Debt Service:
Principal
interest and Fiscal Charges
Fiscal Agent's Fees
Capital Outlay:
Capital Qutlay
Total Expenditures
Excess {Deficiency) of Revenues
Over {Under} Expenditures

Other Financing Sources {(Uses):
Operating Transfers In
Operating Transfers Cul
Other Financing Sources
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Net Change in Fund Balances

Fund Balances - Beginning
Fund Balances - Ending

EXHIBIT C-2

Total
Nonmajor
Special Capital Governmenial
Revenue Projects Funds (See
Funds Funds Exhibit A-5)
592,324 -- $ 592,324
15,267 - 15,267
461,041 240,598 701,639
2,905 - 2,805
899,890 - 899,890
1,014 882 1,898
13,878 -- 13,878
1,986,319 241,480 2,227,799
89,534 - 89,534
616,037 - 616,037
15,804 15,804
373,867 373,867
611,370 - 611,370
29,993 29,993
258,294 1,492,185 1,750,479
1,994,899 1,492,185 3,487,084
{8,580) {1,250,705) (1,259,285}
650,945 105,000 755,945
(65,000} -- {65,000}
-- 1,930,000 1,930,000
585,945 2,035,000 2,620,945
577,365 784,295 1,361,660
183,468 987,259 1,170,727
760,833 1,771,554 $ 2,532,387
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CITY OF RIO GRANDE CITY, TEXAS

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2014

ASSETS AND OTHER DEBITS

Assets:
Cash and Cash Equivalents

Receivables ( net of allowances for uncollectibles):

Due from Other Funds
Total Assets and Other Debils

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES:
Liabilities:
Accounts Payable
Due to Other Funds
Accrued Interest Payable
Deferred Revenue
Total Liabilities

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Unavailable Revenue-Property Taxes
Total Deferred inflows of Resources

Fund Balances:
Restricted Fund Balances:
Federal or State Funds Grant Restriction
Restricted for Debt Service
Assigned
Total Fund Balance

Total Liabilities and Fund Balance

Hotel Special HIDTA
Occupancy Litigation Forfeiture Task Force
Tax Fund Fund Fund Fund
288,844 § -- $ 345,960 {2,479)
7,769 - -- 67,413
206,613 § -- $ 345,960 64,934
- $ - $ - 13,435
56 -- - 46,586
56 - -- 60,021
-- - 345,960 4,913
296,557 -- - --
296,557 -- 345,960 4,913
296,613, $ - $ 345,960 64,934
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Historical
Preservation
Fund

Treasury
Forfeiture
Fund

10,410

10,410

$_ 10410

SECO
Block
Grant

$ .
57,576

$ 57,576

s 51578
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$

Revolving
Loan
Fund

EXHIBIT C-3
Page 1 of 2

CcJD
Task Force
Grant Fund

2,372

2,372

3 2,373




CITY OF RIO GRANDE CITY, TEXAS
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET

NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2014

ASSETS AND OTHER DEBITS

Assets:

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Recelvables ( net of allowances for uncolfectibles).
Due from Other Funds

Total Assets and Other Debits

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES:
Liabilities:
Accounts Payable
Due to Other Funds
Accrued Interest Payable
Deferred Revenus
Total Liabilities

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESQURCES
Unavailable Revenue-Property Taxes
Total Deferred inflows of Resources

Fund Balances:
Restricted Fund Balances:
Federal or State Funds Grant Restriction
Restricted for Debt Service
Assigned
Total Fund Balance

Total Liabilities and Fund Balance

Border DHS SRF PEG
Security Stenegarden Airport Fee
Grants Fund Fund Revenue
19 § - - $ 3,595
57,423 84,413 -- --
57,442 § 84,413 -- $ 3,595
- $ - - $ -
57,514 84,413 - ~
57,514 84,413 -- --
(72) - - 3,595
(72) - - 3,595
57442 $ 84,413 $ -- $ 3,595
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Street
Improvementis
Fund #724659

TCF
Contract #723242
Fund

Debt
Service
Fund

$ 155,008
83,875

$ 238,883

$ 200

70,035

70,235

80,232
80,232

88,416

88,416

$ 238,883
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Boys
& Girls

Club
$ 8,174
508
$ 8,682

$ -

8,682
8,682

$ 8,682

EXHIBIT C-3
Page 2 0f 2

Total
Nonmajor
Special
Revenue
Funds (See
Exhibit C-1)

$ 811,904
358,469
508

$ 1,170,881

% 13,635
246,146
70,035

329,816

80,232
80,232

375,860

88,416
296,557
760,833

$ 1,170,881




CITY OF RIO GRANDE CITY, TEXAS

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,

AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2014

Revenue:
Taxes:

General Properly Taxes

Other Taxes - Franchise Taxes
Intergovernmental
Charges for Services
Fines and Forfeifures
Investment Earnings
Miscellaneous Revenues

Total revenues

Expenditures:
Current:
General Government
Pubiic Safety
Economic Development and Assistance
Debt Service:
Principal
Interest and Fiscal Charges
Fiscal Agent's Fees
Capital Outlay:
Capital OQutlay
Total Expenditures
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Qver {Under) Expenditures

Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Operating Transfers in
Operating Transters Out
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Net Change in Fund Balances

Fund Balances - Beginning
Fund Balances - Ending

Hotel HIDTA Treasury
Occupancy Forfeiture Task Force Forfeiture
Tax Fund Fund Fund Fund
141,373 § - $ -- -
-- - 276,390 --
-- 863,737 - 36,153
- 515 -- 29
160 - - -
141,533 864,252 276,390 36,182
- 206,215 272,678 22,204
15,804 - -- -
- 43,867 -- -
- 224,728 -- 5,959
15,804 474,810 272,678 28,183
125,729 389,442 3,712 8,019
{35,000} {30,000) - -
{35,000) {30,000) - --
80,729 359,442 3,712 8,019
205,828 {13,482) 1,201 2,391
296,557 $ 345980 $ 4,913 10,410
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EXHIBIT C-4

Page 1 of 2
CJD Border DHS SRAF PEG
Task Force Security Stonegarden Airport Fee
Grant Fund Grants Fund Fund Revenue
$ -- $ - $ - 3 - $ -
- - - - 15,267
2,324 28,194 85,988 - -~
1 -- - - 13
2,325 28,194 85,988 -- 15,280
- - - 13,445 -
102 28,272 85,988 -- 578
- - - - 27,607
102 28,272 85,088 13,445 28,185
2,223 (78) - (13,445) (12,905)
- - - 13,445 -
- - - 13,445 -
2,223 (78) - - (12,905
149 6 - -- 16,500
$ 2,372 $ (72) $ - $ - $ 3,595
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CITY OF RIO GRANDE CITY, TEXAS
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2014 Total
Nonmajor
Special
Debt Boys Revenue
Service & Girls Funds (See
Fund Club Exhibit C-2)
Revenue:
Taxes:
General Properly Taxes $ 450,951 $ - $ 592324
Other Taxes - Franchise Taxes - - 15,267
imtergovernmentat -- 68,145 461,041
Charges for Services -- 2,905 2,905
Fines and Forfeitures -- - 899,890
Investment Earnings 453 3 1,014
Miscellaneous Revenues -- 13,718 13,878
Total revenues 451,404 84,771 1,986,319
Expenditures:
Current:
General Government - 76,082 89,534
Public Safety - - 616,037
Economic Development and Assistance -- = 15,804
Debt Service:
Principal 330,000 - 373,867
Interest and Fiscal Charges 611,370 -- 611,370
Fiscal Agent's Fees 29,993 - 29,993
Capital Qullay:
Capital Ouliay - - 258,294
Total Expenditures 971,363 76,089 1,994,899
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over (Under) Expenditures (519,959) 8,682 (8,580)
Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Operating Transfers In 637,500 -- 650,945
Operating Transfers Cul - - (65,000)
Total Cther Financing Sources {Uses) 637,500 - 585,945
Net Change in Fund Balances 117,541 8,682 577,365
Fund Balances - Beginning {29,125) - 183,468
Fund Balances - Ending $ 88,416 $ 8,682 $ 760,833
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CITY OF RIO GRANDE CITY, TEXAS
DEBT SERVICE FUND

SPECIAL REVENUE FUND

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2014

REVENUE:
Taxes:
General Properly Taxes
Investment Earnings
Total revenues

EXPENDITURES:
Debt Service:
Principal
Interest and Fiscal Charges
Fiscal Agent's Fees
Total Expenditures
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over (Under) Expendilures

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Transfers In
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Net Change in Fund Balances

Fund Balances - Beginning
Fund Balances - Ending

EXHIBIT C-5
Variance with
Final Budget
Budgeted Amounts Positive
Original Final Actual {Negative)
439,013 § 439,013 § 450,951 $ 11,938
300 300 453 153
439,313 439,313 451,404 12,091
990,000 990,000 330,000 660,000
555,158 555,158 611,370 (68,212)
32,050 32,050 29,993 2,057
1,577,208 1,577,208 971,363 605,845
{1,137,895) {1,137,895) (519,959} 617,936
1,367,500 1,367,500 637,500 (730,000)
1,367,500 1,367,500 637,500 730,000
229,605 229,605 117,541 {112,064)
- -- (29,125) (29,125)
229605 § 229,605 $ 88,416 § (141,189)
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CITY OF RIO GRANDE CITY, TEXAS
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET

NONMAJOR CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2014

Water Capital Projects
Plant Reserve
Project Fund
ASSETS AND OTHER DEBITS
Assets:
Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 63 $ 28,637
Investmenis - 4,281
Receivables ( net of allowarices for uncollectibles): 15,000 -
Total Assets and Other Debiis $ 15,063 $ 32,918
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES:
Liabilities:
Accounis Payable $ 18,480 $ --
Due to Other Funds : 100 50
Total Liabilities _ 18,580 50
Fund Balances:
Restricted Fund Balances:
Committed
Construction {3,517) 32,868
Total Fund Balance {3,517) 32,868
Total Liabilities and Fund Balance $ 15,063 $ 32,918
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Waste
Water
Project

$ 4,174
574

$ 4,748

50
50

4,698
4,698

s a7

2013
Waslewater

$ 1,702,354
34,983
168

% 1,737,505

$
1,737,505
1,737,505
$__ 1,737,505

55

EXHIBIT C-6

Total
Nonmajor
Capital
Projects
Funds (See
Exhibit C-1)

$ 1,735,228
39,838
15,168

$ 1,790,234

$ 18,480
200
18,680

1,771,554
1,771,554

$ 1,790,234




CITY OF RIO GRANDE CITY, TEXAS
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

NONMAJOR CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2014

Water Capital Projecis
Plant Reserve
Project Fund
Revenue:
Intergovernmental $ 240,598 $ --
Investment Earnings 44 349
Total revenues 240,642 349
Expenditures:
Capital Cutlay:
Capital Outiay 246,602 707,333
Total Expenditures 246,602 707,333
Excess {Deficiency) of Revenues
Qver {Under) Expenditures {5,960) {706,984)
Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Operating Transfers In - -
Other Financing Sources -- --
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) - -
Net Change in Fund Balances {5,960) {706,984)
Fund Balances - Beginning 2,443 739,852
Fund Balances - Ending $ (3,517) $ 32,868
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Wasle
Water
Project

94
94

345,360

345,360

{345,266)

105,000

105,000

{240,266)

244,964

$ 4,698

2013

Wastewater

395
395

192,890

192,820

(192,495)

1,930,000

1,930,000

1,737,505

$ 1,737,505
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EXHIBIT C-7

Total
Nonmajor
Capital
Projects
Funds (See

Exhibit C-2)

240,598
882
241,480

1,492,185

1,492,185

{1,260,705)

105,000
1,930,000

2,035,000

784,295

987,259

$ 1,771,554
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Other Supplementary Information

This section Includes financial information and disclosures not required by the Governmental Accounting Standards
Board and not considered a part of the basic financial statements. It may, however, include information which is
required by other entities.
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RAUL HERNANDEZ & COMPANY, P.C,
Certified Public Accountants
5422 Holly Rd
Corpus Christi, Texas 78411
Office (361) 980-0428 Fax (361) 980-1002

City Council

City of Rio Grande City, Texas
101 8. WASHINGTON

Rio Grande City, Texas 78582

Members of the City Council:

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Audiling Slandards
issued by the Compiroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the governmental
activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of City
of Rio Grande Cily, Texas, as of and for the year ended September 30, 2014, and the related notes to the
financial statements, which collectively comprise City of Rio Grande City, Texas's basic financial statements,
and have issued our report thereon dated January 13, 2016.

Internal Controt Over Financlal Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the City of Rio Grande City,
Texas's internal control over financial reporting {internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but
not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the City of Rio Grande City, Texas's
internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the City of Rio Grande
Cily, Texas's internal control.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the preceding paragraph and
was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or
significant deficiencies and therefore, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that were
not identified. Howaver, as described in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned cosls, we
identified certain deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses and significant
deficiencies.

A deficiency In internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management
or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct,
misstatsments on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in
internal control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity's financial
statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. We consider the deficiency
described in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned cosis as item 2014-01 to be a material
weakness.

A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less
severe than a material weakness, yet important encugh to merit attention by those charged with governance,
We consider the deficiencies described in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs as
items 2014-01 to be significant deficiencies.
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Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obiaining reasonable assurance about whether the City of Rio Grande City, Texas's financial
statements are free from material misstaiement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions
of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and
material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on
compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express
such an opinion. The results of our tesls disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are
required to be reported under Government Audiling Standards.

City of Rio Grande City, Texas's Response to Findings

City of Rio Grande City, Texas's response to the findings identified in our audit is described in the
accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. City of Rio Grande City, Texas's resporise was
not subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and, accordingly, we
express no opinion on it.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance
and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal
control or on compiiance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with

Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity's internal control and compliance. Accordingly,
this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

Respectiully submitted,

/%d, orren oy

Raul Hernandez & Company, P.C.

Corpus Christi, Texas
January 13, 2016
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CITY OF RIO GRANDE CITY, TEXAS
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2014

A. Summary of Auditor's Results

1.

Financial Statements

Type of auditor's report issued: Unmodified
Internal control over financial reporting:
One or more material weaknesses identified? X Yes No
One or more significant deficiencies identified that
are not considered to be material weaknesses? X Yes None Reported
Noncompliance material to financial
statements noted? Yes X No
Federal Awards N/A
Internal control over major programs:
One or more material weaknesses identified? Yes X No
One or more significant deficiencies identified that
are not considered to be material weaknesses? Yes X None Reported
Type of auditor's report issued on compliance for
major programs: Unmodified
Any audit findings disclosed that are required
to be reported in accordance with section 510(a)
of Circular A-1337 Yes X No
ldentification of major programs:
CFDA Number{s) Name of Federal Program or Cluster
N/A
Dollar threshold used to distinguish between
type A and type B programs: $300,000
Auditee qualified as low-risk audites? Yes X No

B. Financial Statement Findings

FINDING NO. 2014-01
CRITERIA: a governmental accounting system must make it possible to both: (a) to present fairly and with
full disclesure the funds and activities of the government in conformity with generally accepted accounting
principles, and {b) to prepare accurate and timely financial reporiing.
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CITY OF RIO GRANDE CITY, TEXAS
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2014

CONDITION: The City did not maintain accurate general ledgers, year-end accruals, accurate bank
reconciliations, schedules of debt, schedules of depreciation and did not prepare timely financial
reports. Furthermore, management was unable to balance the cash balance for the enterprise
fund. The unknown difference of $580,393.56 was intentionally "forced to balance" and the difference
was randomly charged to a balance sheet account which consequently oversiated the cash balance.

This forced entry" was only disclosed as a result of our audit. We expanded our scope to analyze the

audit difference and identify the source of the unknown balance. Managment took steps to identify the persor
responsible for crealing the "forced amount” and prompily dismissed the person. Managemet also hired

a fee accountant f0 assist with the reconciliation of the cash balance which was corrected.

CAUSE: The financial statements, schedules, general ledger and bank reconciliations were not prepared
accurately and on a timely basis due to lack of iadequate nstruction and training of personnel.

EFFECT: As a result, this places the City in a "high risk” auditee condition, which makes it susceptible to the
possibilty of material misstatement ot its' audited financial statements and the risk of loss of state and federal
funding.

RECOMMENDATION; Management and staff should be instructed and trained regarding the understanding -
basic accounting rules and principles, along with proper internal control and timely financial reporting. The
City should consider hiring an ouiside fee accountant on a long-term basis to provide technical assistance
and oversight of all accounting functions.

MANAGEMENT RESPONSE: The City will undertake the proper steps to update its' accounting practices
and procedures to conform to generally accepted accounting principles and prepare accurate and timely
financial statements, The Cily is conducting a search to hire a degreed accounting professional with
govermental experience.

C. Federal Award Findings and Questioned Costs
NONE
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CITY OF RIO GRANDE CITY, TEXAS
SUMMARY SCREDULE OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2014

Finding/Recommendation

Current Status

Management's Explanation
if Not Implemented

Prior Year findings still exist in 2014.
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CITY OF RIO GRANDE CITY, TEXAS
CORRECTIVE ACTION PLAN
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2014

Management has faken steps to correct all audit deficiences. A professional fee accountant has been hired
to assist management with improving internal controls. The fee accountant will also provide guidance to
assist management with more timely and accurate financial reporting.

The Depuly City Manager is the contact person and will oversee corrective actions.
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